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GENERAL iNFORMATiON
PART A: 

Public Entity’s General information 
Registered Name:  KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Registration Number (if applicable):  N/A
Physical Address:  ithala Trade Centre, 2nd Floor, 
  29 Canal Quay Road, 
  Point Waterfront
Postal Address:  PO Box 2516
  Durban
  4000
Telephone Number:   031 366 7500
Email Address:   info@zulu.org.za
Website Address:   www.zulu.org.za
External Auditors:   Auditor-General South Africa
Bankers:  First National Bank
Manager: Board Secretariat:  Pinky Radebe
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List of  
Acronyms/Abbreviations
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APTA Association for Promotion of Tourism

B-BEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

BRiCS Brazil, Russia, india, China and South Africa

CoGTA Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs

DEDTEA Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs

DM District Municipality

DKZN Durban KwaZulu-Natal Convention Bureau

DMO Destination Marketing Bureau

EiA Environmental impact Assessment

ETEYA Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year Award

FEDHASA Federated Hospitality Association of South Africa

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GGP Gross Geographic Product

GRAP Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

GSA General Sales Agency

iCCA international Congress and Convention Association

iCT information Communication Technology

JMA Joint Marketing Agreement

KSiA King Shaka international Airport

KZN KwaZulu-Natal

LSM Living Standards Measure

NDT National Department of Tourism

NEF National Empowerment Fund

NTSS National Tourism Sector Strategy

SA South Africa

SAA South African Airways

SACCi Southern African Association for the Conference industry

SADC Southern African Development Community

SAPOA South African Property Owners’ Association

SAT South African Tourism

SMME Small, Medium and Micro-Enterprises

TGCSA Tourism Grading Council for South Africa

TEA Tourism Economic Account

TEP Tourism Enterprise Partnerships

TiKZN Trade & investment KwaZulu-Natal

TKZN Tourism KwaZulu-Natal

TSA Tourism Satellite Account

TTRA Travel and Tourism Research Association

UNWTO United Nations World Tourism Organisation

WTTC World Travel and Tourism Council
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Nomusa  
Dube-Ncube (MPL)

MEC for Economic 
Development, Tourism & 
Environmental Affairs

Tourism KZN and all our tourism trade partners locally, nationally and internationally have to 
be congratulated for all their efforts in marketing the province globally. Keeping the KwaZulu-
Natal (KZN) tourism flag flying in such a competitive industry – where tourists are spoilt for 
choice on where to travel around the world – take unending dedication and focus.

MEC’s  
Foreword

it has been another busy year for Tourism KZN as the 
organisation continues to aggressively pursue its vision of 
positioning KZN as Africa’s leading tourism destination.

The organisation has been focusing its attention on greater 
marketing in its key source international markets, particularly 
in the United Kingdom, Germany, America, France and USA. 
in addition, concerted efforts are being made to substantially 
grow visitor numbers from China, india and the rest of the 
African continent, all of which have enormous potential for 
our region.  

Among the highlights of the year under review was the 
launch at the end of October 2018 of the long-awaited British 
Airways direct route from London’s Heathrow Airport to 
Durban’s King Shaka international Airport.

The route is three times a week, but with reports reflecting 
that it is proving popular and is boosting the number of 
international passengers flying into KSiA, we are hopeful 
that it will become a daily service in the not-so-distant 
future. The marketing campaign to promote the route and 
the destination in the UK market has also reaped excellent 
rewards, with arrivals to KZN from the UK on an upward trend 
that can only grow. 

in his State of the Nation address, President Cyril Ramaphosa 
noted that the country’s tourism industry currently sustains 
700 000 direct jobs and that it was performing better than 
other growth sectors. He added that there was no reason why 
this figure could not double in size.

The South African government is hoping to add another five 
million incoming tourists in five years – the 5-iN-5 tourism 

growth strategy – and government’s planned increased 
support for destination marketing in key tourism markets will 
go a long way to achieving this.

We in KwaZulu-Natal are doing our best to help the country 
reach that target as we aggressively forge partnerships and 
promote the province as a ‘must see’ destination to our 
domestic and international markets. Some 180 000 people 
earn a living from tourism and as tourism partners have to 
keep up the momentum to sustain existing jobs while creating 
new ones. Government remains committed to creating 
an enabling environment to encourage tourism growth, 
including marketing the destination globally. We equally rely 
on our tourism trade partners to fulfil our marketing promise 
of an exceptional Zulu Kingdom experience by maintaining 
high levels of service provision to tourists for not only repeat 
visits but also to be our brand ambassadors through word-of-
mouth marketing. 

On the tourism development front, TKZN is contributing to 
the upgrading of the Nelson Mandela Capture Site at Howick 
following a R12,5-million contribution from the National 
Department of Tourism and work will be completed within 
the 2019/2020 financial year.

The Capture Site, which welcomes thousands of visitors 
every month, is fast becoming one of the country’s ‘must see’ 
tourist attractions. it is also helping to boost local businesses 
as countless visitors stop-over in the area after visiting the 
Capture Site.

i am happy to report that there is also progress on the 
proposed R1.2 billion beach resort development at Tinley 
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The South African government is hoping to add another five million incoming 
tourists in five years – the 5-IN-5 tourism growth strategy – and government’s 
planned increased support for destination marketing in key tourism markets will 
go a long way to achieving this.

Manor on the North Coast, which is a partnership with an 
international tourism brand and local business. This will be 
another feather in our cap and will really assist to put the 
region on the international tourist map, as it will provide 
an offering that global tourist expects have long said was 
missing from our destination’s array of tourism offerings.

KwaZulu-Natal is fast taking its place globally as of Africa’s 
top business events destinations, and the Durban KwaZulu-
Natal Conventions Bureau continues its work in promoting 
KZN as a world-class business events destination. in 2018, 
the Convention Bureau attracted over 20 national and 
international events that generated over a billion rands to 
the local economy. A total of 38 national and international 
business events have been secured for the 2019/20, and 
are projected to have an even bigger impact to the local 
economy, projected at R1.3 billion.

i am pleased with all the efforts that Tourism KZN is taking to 
drive transformation in the sector. in the year under review, 
a total of 45 black-owned small, medium and micro-sized 
businesses are being helped with skills development training 
and access to the market.

Job creation remains a major priority for government and 
while the latest statistics indicate that jobs created in the 
province’s tourism industry are in the region of 180  000, 
more certainly needs to be done. it is for this reason that i 
congratulate Tourism KwaZulu-Natal for running its enterprise 
development programme that helps create new and sustain 
existing jobs. in 2018, a total of 45 small black-owned tourism 
enterprises, both in business events and leisure, were trained 
and participated in various local, national and international 

access-to-market platforms, and this year the number of 
enterprises receiving support has increased to 60.

Furthermore, the organisation ran an internship programme 
for 22 unemployed graduates during the year under review. 
The programme, which started in 2008, empowers youth 
to receive on the job training and the organisation designs 
training programmes designed for their needs. A total of 131 
interns have been empowered since 2008, inclusive of the 
current intake. Out of this number, 79 interns have secured 
employment on a permanent as well as fixed term basis, 
representing 60.3% of employment to date.

Once again, i commend the TKZN team for its unstinting 
efforts in marketing the province of KwaZulu-Natal and 
ensuring that the province and all its tourism treasures stays 
top-of-mind when people are planning their holidays and 
business trips.

i would like to also sincerely thank our tourism trade partners 
for maintaining their high standards, thus ensuring that we 
continue not only to get new visitors, but repeat ones too.

We look forward to the journey ahead as we take our destination 
to greater heights domestically and internationally. 

Nomusa  Dube-Ncube (MPL)
MEC for Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs
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The Board of TKZN is pleased that the Organisation has pulled out all the stops to fulfill its 
mandate, which is to market, develop and transform the tourism sector while maintaining 
its focus on the aims of the master plan to position the Province as Africa’s leading tourism 
destination.  

Sithembiso Madlala
Board Chairperson

Chairperson’s
Statement

i am pleased to report that the tourism sector continues to 
significantly contribute to KwaZulu-Natal’s economic growth, 
boosting the local coffers as a result of the domestic and 
international visitors who come to our shores for their holidays 
and business conferences. This, of course, sustains the thousands 
of tourism jobs that already exist, further creating new jobs.

i am particularly pleased that TKZN continues to play a strategic 
role in driving the mandate to implement transformation 
activities in the Province while at the same time contributing 
towards growing and sustaining the industry. indeed, great 
strides have been made to transform the industry to benefit 
dozens of black-owned tourism enterprises during the course 
of the year under review.

TKZN has forged partnerships with various development 
finance institutions and is in the process of establishing the 
Tourism Transformation Fund, which will provide financial 
and other support 100% black-owned businesses. There is no 
doubt that this will strengthen and accelerate transformation 
in KZN’s tourism sector. A total of 41 targeted black-owned 
businesses, ranging from tour operators to accommodation 
establishments, have benefitted from opportunities provided 
by TKZN’s revamped tourism transformation programme. it 
will help these small, emerging, businesses to grow, and it will 
also see the rise of a new generation of youth, women and 
black-owned tourism industrialists – and this is destined to 
take the sector in KwaZulu-Natal to new heights.  

This intervention has supported small, medium and micro-
enterprises with valuable training and skills, market exposure 
and business networking opportunities.  Out of the 41, a 
total of 25 have been taken through comprehensive and 

‘eye-opening’ training on fundamental skills that are needed 
to design, develop, market and operate travel packages 
and tours. The course covered such content as how to 
source clients, cost out a tour and commission, itinerary 
development, registration and insurance, the tourism value 
chain and how to conduct their work with professionalism.

Thirty-five others received support to access domestic 
and international markets as a result of being included in 
various high-profile marketing platforms, such as the World 
Travel Market Africa and the Africa Travel indaba in Durban, 
where they were able to engage with the trade. Twenty of 
these were further provided with invaluable opportunities 
to form business linkages and partnerships with other 
tourism businesses around the country as well as abroad. 
The enterprises, which were supported locally, regionally and 
internationally, are based across the Province, as geographical 
spread is important to TKZN. 

TKZN’s Rural and Township Tourism approach is also 
gaining traction as more tourism actors from rural and 
township communities embrace tourism. Tourism KZN 
chairs a Tourism Transformation Committee on which serves 
Development Funding institutions (DFis), and at the centre 
of the Committee’s mandate is the growth of black-owned 
businesses in tourism, with a particular focus on enhancing 
township and rural economies.

The success of TKZN’s transformation initiatives cannot just 
be the Government’s priority alone. if this is to become a truly 
inclusive industry and economy, TKZN needs the support of 
the private sector – to recognise the potential in their staff 
and form working relationships with emerging businesses.
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A total of 41 targeted black-owned businesses, ranging from tour operators to 
accommodation establishments, have benefitted from opportunities provided 
by TKZN’s revamped tourism transformation programme.  It will help these small, 
emerging, businesses to grow, and it will also see the rise of a new generation of 
youth, women and black-owned tourism industrialists – and this is destined to take 
the sector in KwaZulu-Natal to new heights. 

i would like to thank the former MEC for Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs Mr Sihle 
Zikalala; the current MEC Nomusa Dube-Ncube; the former 
Head of the Department Ms Pumla Ncapayi; and the current 
Acting Head of Department Mr Siza Sibande for their 
leadership and support throughout the year. i would further 
like to thank my Board colleagues for their unwavering 
commitment to the vision and mission of Tourism KZN, as 
well as the staff of TKZN under the capable leadership of the 
Acting CEO Ms Phindile Makwakwa. 

We are highly indebted to our partners in the industry for 
their unwavering support and commitment to promoting and 
showcasing KwaZulu-Natal and its many tourist attractions to 
the world. Lastly, i wish to thank individuals, tourists, partners 
and organisations who continue to make our Province their 
preferred leisure and business destination of choice. 

Mr S. Madlala
Chairperson

TKZN’s marketing team has been busy at home, on the 
continent – our new frontier – and across the globe as they keep 
up the good work of attending trade gatherings and spreading 
the word about the beauty and attractions of KZN. They also 
have pursued TKZN’s vision that by 2030 the Province will be 
globally renowned as Africa’s top destination with a unique 
blend of wildlife, scenic and heritage experiences for all visitors.

On the business events front, the Durban KZN Convention 
Bureau has truly made us proud, positioning the city of Durban 
and province of KwaZulu-Natal as a serious global player in 
the meetings, incentives, conferences and exhibitions (MiCE) 
sector. The Bureau bid and won the rights to host a number 
of major national and international events, with a total 
economic injection of some R1 billion into the local economy.

TKZN also realises the importance of hosting leisure events 
around the Province and worked closely with shareholders 
to provide support to municipalities to host their signature 
events, thereby attracting tourists to their areas. This support 
helps ensure geographic spread of tourists, boosts the local 
economy and creates well-needed jobs. 
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The importance of tourism to KwaZulu-Natal cannot be over-emphasised. it attracts visitors 
throughout the year and the money that they spend on having a memorable holiday boosts 
our economy and contributes to the provincial GDP, while sustaining and creating jobs for 
thousands of people. 

Phindile Makwakwa
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Acting CEO’s 
Overview

TKZN’s important role is to drive tourism in the Province using 
a variety of platforms and programmes, all designed to attract 
domestic and international visitors.

Guided by the all-important five-year Tourism KZN Strategy 
that envisages KZN as being recognised as Africa’s leading 
tourist destination, TKZN’s goal remains that of growing 
tourist numbers, improve the geographical spread of tourists, 
while further driving the transformation agenda by pro-
actively supporting small, medium and micro- tourism black-
owned enterprises that are working to get established in this 
competitive yet exciting industry. 

Tourism Economy
Tourism directly employs some 180 000 people (and more 
indirectly) and is key to the long-term sustainability of the 
industry. While international arrivals are on the increase, 
domestic travel has seen a bit of a decline across the country. 
in order to ensure that KZN climbs back to the number one 
spot, TKZN continues to promote its ‘Do KZN’ campaign that 
promotes affordable tourism experiences in KZN. During the 
year under review, TKZN amplified its campaign with a series 
of activations across the country that targeted local travellers 
including activating at popular events in the Free State, 
Western Cape and Gauteng. This was supported by a blitz of 
advertising and promotion campaigns in various print and 
electronic media platforms, keeping the Province top of mind 
with the trade and consumers.

Business Tourism
The Durban KwaZulu-Natal Convention Bureau, which is 
a unit of TKZN, continues to attract major conferences to 

the Province. The bureau’s job involves bidding for a range 
of high-profile gatherings that could bring thousands of 
delegates to the Province. Once a conference is secured, 
the bureau works with the event organisers to encourage 
their delegates to go on pre- and post-event tours, thereby 
increasing the amount they spend in the Province while also 
ensuring increased spend and ensuring geographic spread, 
especially to  rural and township areas.

Among the bids that were secured during the year under 
review was the top level 2020 World Football Summit, which 
will be held in Africa for the first time, worth an estimated 
R800 million to the region.

Events
As well as attracting business conferences and meetings, 
the Province has a well-deserved reputation as the sporting 
capital of the country and the region plays host to several 
high-profile events that attract an increasing number of 
international participants who often are accompanied by 
their friends, families and supporters.

The Vodacom Durban July – Africa’s premier horseracing 
event – which brings some 50 000 racegoers to the event 
and the region, remains one of the mega events on the 
sporting and social calendar event of the year. it contributes 
massively towards the hospitality industry and associated 
businesses such as the airlines, car hire companies, hotels 
and restaurants. As a popular event among top socialites, 
celebrities and influencers, the event enjoys massive global 
media coverage, which reinforces the view about the region 
being a leading holiday destination.
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In the three-month period ending September 2018 alone, a total of 84 949 new users 
visited the website, 54% of them browsing the website using their mobile devices, 
which supports the drive for greater investment in mobile technologies. Top on the 
website are users from South Africa, the USA, the UK, Germany and Australia. The 
mobile app increases this footprint with the top five countries being South Africa, 
Lesotho, the UK, India and Germany.

The ultra-distance Comrades Marathon, billed as ‘the ultimate 
human race’ and one of the most significant sporting events 
in Africa, attracts 25 000 runners, along with thousands of 
supporters, including participants from around the world. The 
three-day Dusi Canoe Marathon, as well as the long-distance 
cycling race, the Tsogo Sun Amashova Durban Classic, and 
the Mandela Day Marathon, also bring participants and 
supporters into the region.

Tourism Brand
TKZN’s aim is to constantly spread the word about the Zulu 
Kingdom brand and it does that across the country as well 

as extensively in Africa – our new frontier – and around the 
world. TKZN does this by attending a range of influential 
trade shows; in-country training of tour operators and travel 
agents; inviting key travel agents, tour operators and the 
media to see the experiences first-hand by hosting destination 
familiarization tours; and by marketing the Province through 
various social media platforms.

A 24-month marketing campaign was launched to promote 
the destination and the direct three-times-a-week BA flights 
from London’s Heathrow Airport to Durban’s King Shaka 
international Airport. 
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Chief Executive 
Officer’s Overview
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TKZN also took part in an investment promotion mission to 
the UK – one of KZN’s main source markets – in June, which 
was a collaboration between the KZN Growth Coalition, invest 
Durban and the Department of Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA). 

Tourism Intelligence
TKZN has made full use of digital marketing platforms to 
promote the region and there have been a substantial 
increase in the ‘hits’ on the website (with people gaining 
access to key tourism information) as well as the destination 
mobile App, KZN Travel Guide.

in the three-month period ending September 2018 alone, 
a total of 84 949 new users visited the website, 54% of 
them browsing the website using their mobile devices, 
which supports the drive for greater investment in mobile 
technologies.

Top on the website are users from South Africa, the USA, 
the UK, Germany and Australia. The mobile app increases 
this footprint with the top five countries being South Africa, 
Lesotho, the UK, india and Germany.

These figures are in addition to the thousands of walk-in and 
email enquiries to TKZN’s tourism information services and 
the national and foreign brochures that are distributed.

TKZN’s Tourism information Services unit also conducts vital 
economic impact assessments of key events in the Province, 
and the findings of their research are highly rated by 
organisers, who often take on board recommendations that 
assist in making improvements to grow their events. 

Africa’s Travel Indaba
This year, the KZN Business Breakfast at the Africa’s Travel 
indaba was the perfect platform to unveil the game-changing 
announcement that British Airways would be launching 
its non-stop direct flights from London’s Heathrow Airport 
to Durban’s King Shaka international Airport at the end of 
October 2018, much to the delight of the tourism trade. 

Africa’s Travel indaba has become one of the top three 
trade shows in the world. in 2018, it attracted over 7 000 
delegates, up by 4% on the previous year. Some 1 747 buyers 
attended and that was an increase of 14% and more than 1 
100 exhibitors were registered – 200 being first-time buyers 
– an increase of 5.7%. Tourism KZN used the trade show to 
showcase destination KZN together with seven KZN routes 
that boast some out-the-provinces must-visit experiences. 
Emerging black-owned businesses involved in TKZN’s 
transformation incubation programme, were afforded the 
opportunity to network and create business linkages with top 
tour operators from all over the world. 
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Corporate Governance
The Entity abides by the principles of good corporate 
governance, complying with all the relevant laws and 
regulations in its day-to-day operations.

This enables TKZN to follow best practice ideals, while 
ensuring it stays focused on marketing the Zulu Kingdom to 
the best of its ability.

Acknowledgments
The 2018/19 financial year was not without its challenges. 
We were faced with a challenged economy in the country 
that forced some of our travellers to change their patterns 
of travel in order to stretch their budgets to day-to-day 
household responsibilities. Despite such challenges, through 
the partnerships with our tourism trade, we managed to drive 
a high impact domestic tourism campaign that gave our 
tourists value for money packages.

We took this time with stride and challenged ourselves to 
expand our marketing efforts in many of our international 
core markets and our efforts have proven successful judging 
from the increased international tourists arrivals compared to 
last year.

i would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere 
gratitude to the Department of Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs for the support, guidance 
and leadership they have given us as Tourism KZN. it is through 
the support of the leadership of then MEC, Mr Sihle Zikalala 
that we have managed to seal major deals that we believe will 
definitely propel KZN to greater tourism height and cement 
us as a top of mind destination locally and globally.

i look forward to working with our new MEC for Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs, Ms Nomusa 
Dube-Ncube who comes with a wealth of experience and an 
even bigger passion for tourism. i am confident that 2019/20 
will be another exciting year for tourism in KZN and we will 
achieve even greater things under her leadership.

i also extend my gratitude to our Board Chairperson, 
Mr Sithembiso Madlala and all Board members for their 
unwavering support in growing our tourism sector. it is 
through their guidance and leadership that we managed to 
achieve many of the major successes we had this year.

My appreciation is also extended to our various tourism 
stakeholders for walking this journey with us, giving us 
support whenever we needed it and remaining committed to 
give our tourists world-class service at all times.

Lastly, none that we have achieved in the year under review 
would have been possible with the Tourism KZN’s Executive 
Management Team and all our members of staff whose 
commitment often goes well beyond their call of duty. 
Tourism KZN has managed to deliver high impact campaigns 
and initiatives through a team that constantly shows 
flexibility, innovation and dedication.

Phindile Makwakwa 
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of 
Responsibility

The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999), as amended, requires the 
Accounting Authority to ensure that the Public Entity keeps full and proper records of the 
financial affairs of the Public Entity.

it also requires that the Annual Financial Statements fairly 
present the state of affairs of the Public Entity, its business, 
its financial results, its performance against predetermined 
objectives and its financial position as at the end of each 
financial year in terms of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP).

TKZN acknowledges that the Annual Financial Statement are 
the responsibility of the members of the Authority.

The Auditor-General of South Africa is responsible for 
independently auditing and reporting on the Annual 
Financial Statements.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in 
accordance with statement of GRAP. These Annual Financial 
Statements are based on appropriate accounting policies, 
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and 
estimates.

The members have reviewed the Public Entity’s budget and 
cashflow forecasts for the year ended 31 March 2020. On 
the basis of this review, and in view of the current financial 
position, the members have every reason to believe that the 
Public Entity will be a going concern in the year ahead and 
have continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
the Annual Financial Statements.

To enable the members to meet the above responsibilities, 
the Board sets standards and implements systems of internal 
controls and risk management that are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material 
misstatements and losses.

The Public Entity maintains internal financial controls to 
provide assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets 
against unauthorised use or disposition, and the maintenance 
of proper accounting records, and the reliability of financial 
information used within the business.

in the opinion of members, based on information available 
to date, the Annual Financial Statements fairly presents the 
financial position of TKZN at 31 March 2019, the results of 
its operations and cashflow information for the year then 
ended, and that the Code of Corporate Governance has been 
adhered to.

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
March 2019, set out on pages 82 to 113 were approved by 
the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1)(f ) of the 
Public Finance Management Act 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), as 
amended and are signed on its behalf by:

For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Mr S. Madlala      Ms P. Makwakwa 
Chairperson       Acting Chief Executive Officer
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Strategic Overview

The Organisation is accountable to the KwaZulu-Natal 
provincial government’s Department of Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs and is 
responsible, both directly and indirectly, for ensuring the 
ongoing development, promotion and marketing of tourism 
into and within KwaZulu-Natal.  

Vision
TKZN’s vision is to position the province of KwaZulu-Natal 
as Africa’s leading tourism destination, nationally and 
internationally.

Mission
TKZN’s mission is to initiate, facilitate, co-ordinate and 
implement:

• Strategic tourism marketing
• Demand-driven tourism development programmes that 

will grow tourism, thereby serving to achieve:
• The transformation of the tourism sector within the 

Province
• The provision of economic benefits to all 

stakeholders and the Province.

Objectives
TKZN’s business objectives include:

• increasing foreign arrivals
• increasing the share of domestic visitors
• increasing tourism expenditure (spend)
• Reducing foreign seasonality
• increasing geographic spread
• improving destination image and service excellence
• Promoting responsible and demand-driven tourism 

development and accessibility
• Fostering strategic leadership
• Promoting transformation
• Providing an enabling environment for tourism growth 

and development

Values
• We value the contribution of our people by recognising 

their performance and appreciating them as people
• We all strive for superior delivery of customer service, 

both internally and externally
• We are committed to making KwaZulu-Natal the top 

destination in Africa
• in performing our duties, we will trust each other to be 

honest and reliable
• in all our dealings, we will act with integrity so that 

people trust us
• Through our professionalism, people will value dealing 

with us
• Team spirit is what will make TKZN a great place to work!

The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, which trades as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN), was 
established in terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act, 1996, as amended, by Act No.2 of 
2002.
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TKZN derives its mandate from a number of pieces of legislation and government policy 
frameworks, which include the following:

Legislative and 
Other Mandates

• KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act                                        Act 11 of 1996
• Basic Conditions of Employment Act                          Act 75 of1997
• Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Act     Act 53 of 2003
• Constitution of the Republic of South Africa               Act 108 of1996
• Employment Equity Act                                               Act 55 of 1998
• Framework for Supply Chain Management                Gazette 25767 dated 5/12/2003
• Labour Relations Act                                                   Act 66 of 1995
• Preferential Policy Framework Act                             Act 5 of 2000
• National Treasury Regulations                                    Gazette 225 dated 15/03/2005
• Provincial Tourism Policy                                            Approved in March 2008
• Public Finance Management Act                                Act No.1 of 1999
• National Tourism Sector Strategy                               Approved in March 2011

There are three further important documents that will have an impact on the role of TKZN in the future. These are:
• The National Tourism Sector Strategy
• The Provincial Growth and Development Strategy
• The Provincial Tourism Master Plan 

The key focus of TKZN, in terms of the aforementioned strategic documents, is to drive and improve economic growth from a 
tourism perspective. Tourism stakeholders are, therefore, expected to concentrate efforts to position tourism to be at the helm of 
economic growth, through, among other things, increasing international arrivals and promoting a culture of travel at a domestic 
level, increasing tourism contribution to the GDP and contributing to the creation of sustainable jobs. 

TKZN has a similar focus, hence the need to ensure alignment, particularly in terms of performance targets, to ensure effective 
allocation of resources and to strive towards achieving common deliverables such as those set out at the provincial and national 
levels.
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Organisational Structure 

During the course of the 2018/2019 financial year, TKZN’s Board of Directors comprised 11 
members, as depicted below.

Mr Sithembiso Madlala 
Chairperson

Mr Paulos Ngcobo  
Audit and Risk Committee 

Chairperson

Prof. Thokozani Nzimakwe
Board Member

Ms Patricia Lebenya  
Deputy Chairperson

Mr Thamsanqa Mzileni
Board Member

Ms Phindile Makwakwa 
Acting Chief Executive Officer, 

ex-officio

Pinky Radebe 
 Board Secretariat

Dr Usha Roopnarain  
Human Resources and 

Compensation Committee 
Chairperson

Prof. Thandi Nzama 
Convention Bureau Committee 

Chairperson 

Mr Terence Delomoney 
Marketing and Tourism 

Development Committee 
Chairperson

Mr Michael Jackson
Board Member

Board of Directors
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Organisational Structure Board of Directors

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE: BOARD MEETINGS – 2018/2019

Member 22 June 
2018

27 July 
2018

25 September 
2018

20 November 
2018

20 December 
2018

18 February 
2019

25 March 
2019

Mr S. Madlala (Chairperson) P P P P P P P

Ms Patricia Lebenya P P P P                   P P P

Prof. Thandi Nzama P P P P P P P

Mr Michael Jackson P P P P P P P

Mr Thamsanqa Mzileni P P P P P P P

Mr T. Delomoney P A A P A P A

Dr U. Roopnarian P P P P P P P

Mr Paulos Ngcobo P P P A P P P

Prof. Thokozani Nzimakwe P A P P P P P

P = Present   A = Apology   N/A= Not Applicable 

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE: HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 2018/2019

Member 3 May 
2018

18 
June 
2018

18 
July 

2018

2 
August 

2018

24 August 
2018

19 
October 

2018

20 
December 

2018

8 February 
2019

7 March 
2019

20 
March 
2019

Dr U. Roopnarain
(Chairperson)

P P P P P P P P P P

Mr T. Mzileni P P P P P P P P P P

Ms P. Lebenya P P P P P P P P P P

Prof T. Nzimakwe P P P P P P P P P P

P = Present   A = Apology   N/A= Not Applicable 

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE: MARKETING AND TOURISM DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE – 2018/2019

Member 24 April 2018 12 July 2018 18 October 2018 7 February 2019

Mr T. Delomoney (Chairperson) P P P P

Mr M. Jackson A A P A

Prof. T. Nzama P P P P

Mr P. Ngcobo P P P P

P = Present   A = Apology N/A= Not applicable
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MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE: CONVENTION BUREAU COMMITTEE – 2018/2019

Member 24 April 2018 18 July 2018 18 October 2018 7 February 2019

Prof. T. Nzama (Chairperson) P P P P

Mr T. Mzileni P P P P

Mr M. Jackson A A P P

Prof. T. Nzimakwe P P P P

P = Present   A = Apology N/A = Not applicable

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE: AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 2018/2019

Member 2 May 
2018

25 May 
2018

24 July 
2018

26 October 
2018

19 December 
2018

8 February 
2019

25 March 
2019

Mr P. Ngcobo (Chairperson) P P P P P P P

Ms P. Lebenya P P P P A P P

Dr U. Roopnarain P P P P P P P

Mr R. Garach (independent Member) P P P P A N/A N/A

Mr M. Mokgobinyane (independent 
Member)

P A P P A N/A N/A

Mr M. Ngcobo (independent Member) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P P

P = Present  A = Apology  N/A = Not applicable 
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During the 2018/2019 financial year, TKZN’s Executive Management team comprised nine 
members, as shown below.

Ms Phindile Makwakwa  
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Vacant  
Senior Manager: Public 

Relations and Communications 

Vacant
Chief Operating Officer

Mr Lindani Sidaki
Interim Chief Financial Officer

(15 October 2018)

Ms Hlengiwe Ndlovu 
Interim Senior Manager: Human 

Resources and Administration
(15 October 2018) 

Keith Matthews  
Acting GM Marketing  

(5 April 2018 – 31 October 2018) 

Vukile Khuzwayo 
Acting General Manager:  

Tourism Development  
(20 July 2018 – 31 January 2019) 

Nhlanhla Khumalo 
General Manager:  

Tourism Development  
(1 February 2019) 

Mr Anir Bidesi  
Senior Manager: ICT and 

Acting GM: TIS

Sonto Mayise
Acting Chief Convention 

Bureau Officer  
(18 June 2018 to date) 

Vacant  
General Manager: Tourism 

Information Services

Thulisile Galelekile 
GM Marketing  

(from 1 November 2018) 

Executive Management
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Organisational Structure
As at 31 March 2019



PERFORMANCE iNFORMATiON
PART B: 
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Auditor’s Report

The Auditor-General of South Africa currently performs the necessary audit procedures on 
the performance information to provide limited assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. 

The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with 
material findings being reported under the ‘Predetermined Objectives’ heading in the ‘Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements’ section of the Auditor’s Report.

Refer to page 78 of the Report for the Audit Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.



ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 27

K W A Z U L U - N A T A L  T O U R I S M  A U T H O R I T YK W A Z U L U - N A T A L  T O U R I S M  A U T H O R I T Y

Situational Analysis

Introduction
The measurement of the state of the country’s tourism 
economy is undertaken through a national Tourism Satellite 
Account (TSA). This is a measurement framework that is based 
on the concepts, definitions and classification of the System 
of National Accounts (SNA), developed in order to present 
a credible measure of the economic contribution of the 
tourism sector to the country’s economy. it comprises a set 
of interlinked tables which, when fully populated, enable the 
economic contribution of the tourism – and other – sectors 
to be measured. 

it is worth noting that it is only possible for a TSA to be 
developed at a national level and not at a provincial level, 
given that it is not presently possible for these tables to be 
populated at a provincial level. 

Other indicators embraced by a number of tourism 
organisations or entities are used for greater detail and to 
determine greater understanding of tourism performance. 
These include two major global tourism entities, being the 
United Nations World Tourism Organisation (UNWTO) and 
the World Travel and Tourism Council (WTTC), together with 
other organisations such as the Travel and Tourism Research 
Association.

information from these bodies, in terms of indicators selected, 
are then utilised to develop a picture of the state of the 
tourism sector from a variety of viewpoints and at a number 
of levels, being global, national and provincial.  

The different indicators employed by the two foremost 
organisations are detailed as follows:

The UNWTO measures tourism using the following indicators: 
• Arrivals – purpose of visit and mode of transport
• Receipts
• Expenditure in outbound markets

The WTTC measures tourism using the following indicators:
• GDP to the world economy – direct and total 
• Employment – direct and total
• Visitor exports
• investment

Within the South African context, the National Tourism Sector 
Strategy (NTSS), developed by the National Department of 
Tourism (NDT), has adopted the following indicators:
• Arrivals
• Spend
• Length of stay
• GDP contribution
• Purpose of visit
• increase in domestic tourists
• Job creation
• Geographic spread
• Seasonality

Finally, at a provincial level, the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism 
Master Plan has adopted the following sets of indicators in 
order to effectively measure the performance and growth of 
the tourism sector:
• GGP contribution (provincial GDP)
• international arrivals
• Domestic trips
• Employment (direct and indirect)
• Geographic spread

State of the Tourism Economy – Macro Goals and Targets: KwaZulu-Natal
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Furthermore, to increase the clarity of the tourism picture at a provincial level, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal also makes use of data 
obtained from other organisations for more detailed information regarding the performance of tourism in this Province. 

in giving consideration to the table below, it should be recognised that there were issues that had serious negative effects on the 
tourism sector from approximately mid-2014 to date. Such issues – some being global and others national – extend well beyond 
the influence of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal. 

These are further explained later in this document. 

MACRO GOALS AND TARGETS – KWAZULU-NATAL

Measure 2014 2015 2016 2017* 2018* T

Domestic trips (m) 5,2 4,98 4,1 4,26 4,43 

Foreign tourists 768 228 743 615 753 617 783 962 815 112 

Domestic spend per person per trip R979 R1 108 R1 086 R1 052 R1 105 

Foreign spend per person per trip R8 350 R6 638 R5 877 R6 171 R6 480 

Direct contribution to GGP (bn) R17,6 R10,2 R10,0 R10,2 R10,5 

Total contribution to GGP (bn) R35,1 R20,4 R19,8 R21,0 R23,0 

Direct employment 105 322 87 670 90 300 93 009 95 799 

Geographic spread (foreign) 1,3 1,3 1,2 1,2 1,2 =

KZN hotel occupancy 62,7% 65,0% 66,1% 66,2% 66,6% 

Air passenger movements 4,0% 5,9% 8,9% 6,1% 6,3% 

Road traffic arrivals 5,0% 6,4% 0,8% 1,2% 1,3% 

 * = Estimated; T = trend; N/D = data not yet available

Disclaimer and Assumptions for Targets
Figures assume South African Tourism (SAT), UNWTO and 
WTTC projections are reasonable.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has negligible control over the 
number of foreign arrivals, foreign spend or foreign 
geographic spread.

The year 2009 was used as the original base year, as this was 
the year in which SAT changed its methodology to be better 
in line with global standards and reported only tourists. Day 
visitors were no longer included in the total. 

The year 2010 was used as the baseline for domestic trips.

Both of these base years had to be adjusted in view of the 
constrained economic climate.

A 4% increase was applied to domestic trips, based on 
historical trends from 2006, including decreases since 2009, 
the reason being that although there has been a historical 

decrease in the number of domestic trips for some time, these 
calculations are based on a ‘best-case’ scenario, and also take 
into account the Government’s NDP, focusing on increasing 
domestic tourism.

A 4% increase was applied to foreign arrivals based on 
historical trends from 2006.

A 5% increase was applied to domestic and foreign spend per 
person per trip, based on historical increases from 2006.

A 5% increase was applied to GGP growth, based on historical 
growth rates from 2006. 

The global economic situation remains stable.

A 3% increase was applied to direct employment, based on 
the small increases in domestic trips and the small increase 
in foreign arrivals.
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Indicator Definitions and Explanation of 
Table
The above detailed table requires a degree of explanation 
and analysis in order to indicate how KwaZulu-Natal has 
performed during the course of the period under review. 
Below are a series of globally-accepted definitions of terms 
that have been used in the table, together with an outline of 
the findings and figures contained in the table.

Domestic Trips
in line with global definitions, a domestic trip is regarded as 
any trip taken within the borders of South Africa by an adult 
resident of this country. in order for such a trip to be regarded 
as a domestic tourism trip, it must have: 
• Been to a destination more than 40kms from the 

respondent’s home (one way) 
• Lasted one night, but less than 365 nights 
• Not been for relocation purposes 
• Not been part of the respondent’s regular commuting 

(unless it was for leisure or recreational purposes) 
• Not resulted in the respondent receiving payment within 

the place visited for services rendered or goods delivered 

Trips are used instead of tourists on the basis that most of 
South Africa’s domestic tourists undertake more than one trip 
a year. 

South African Tourism (SAT) 2018 statistics indicated that 
some 17,7 million domestic trips were undertaken compared 
to 17,2 million trips in 2017 and 24,3 million trips in 2016, 
suggesting a 2,9% increase in the number of trips undertaken 
in South Africa compared to 2017. KwaZulu-Natal received 
just over 2,9m trips in 2018, a 4,6% increase over 2017.

Foreign Arrivals
The UNWTO’s definition of foreign tourists is used and states 
that a foreign arrival is a person who arrives in the country 
and who spends at least 24 hours, but less than one year 
there, and is not remunerated during that time.

The Department of Home Affairs and Stats SA have collaborated 
during recent years in order to align data sets with the UNWTO’s 
definition. Foreign arrivals into South Africa increased to 10,5 
million arrivals, a growth of 1,8% over 2017. KwaZulu-Natal 
received 817 399, an increase of 0,6% over 2017.

in view of the fact that tourism has strong human elements 
with regard to destination decision-making, it is a sector 
extremely sensitive to events that may be perceived as having 

a negative effect on the well-being of tourists. Reactions to 
such events may be rapid and significant, making accurate 
forecasting extremely difficult and often inaccurate.

Domestic Spend
Domestic spend is calculated by adding the per-capita spend 
for each trip taken during the period and reported in nominal 
terms, unless otherwise stated. This is determined through 
the utilisation of the TSA measurement framework. 

in 2018, spending by domestic visitors in and to KwaZulu-
Natal was estimated to be R5bn, with an average spend of 
R1 724 per trip. This was higher than the national average of 
R1 490 per trip. 

Foreign Spend
Foreign tourist expenditure is based on an entire trip, inclusive 
of amounts spent in their home country but accruing to South 
Africa, during the trip and stay at the destination.

This is calculated by adding all pre-paid expenses – including 
airfares – and all expenses incurred in South Africa. This 
amounted to R82,5bn in 2018.

The amount spent by foreign tourists in KwaZulu-Natal is 
estimated to be R6 973 per trip. This equates to R5,7bn spent 
by foreign tourists in KZN. 

Direct and Total Contribution to GDP
The economic impact of travel and tourism in South Africa 
was estimated by the WTTC to be R425bn in 2018. The total 
revenue from tourism was estimated to be R108,9bn, a 5,5% 
increase over 2017. 

Employment
According to the WTTC, travel and tourism contribution was 
1  499  700 jobs in South Africa, either directly or indirectly. 
Tourism supported 123 348 jobs either directly or indirectly 
in KwaZulu-Natal.  

Geographic Spread
in 2018, 20,3% of foreign visitors visited more than one 
province. This was a 0,14% decline from 2017. With regard 
to domestic visitors, 8,4% visited more than one province, a 
decline of 3,4%.

KwaZulu-Natal Hotel Occupancy
Hotel occupancy information pertaining to KwaZulu-Natal is 
acquired from STR Global, a company that provides monthly 
data on hotel occupancies and other related data for a 
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number of areas. it is worth noting that KwaZulu-Natal and its primary city, Durban, performed well in 2018, with KZN having an 
occupancy of 64,3% and Durban 64,2%, above the national average of 62,2%.

Air Passenger Movements
According to the Airports Company South Africa, air passenger arrivals at King Shaka international Airport for the calendar year of 
2018 was 2 931 484, an increase of 6,4% from 2017.

Road Traffic Arrivals
Road traffic arrivals into KwaZulu-Natal, as measured at the Mooi River Toll plaza reflected a 3% decline against 2017. 

SOURCES OF INDICATOR INFORMATION

Domestic trips and spend  Statistics South Africa and South African Tourism quarterly survey

Foreign tourist arrivals Statistics South Africa and South African Tourism departure surveys

Foreign tourist spend South African Tourism departure surveys

Contribution to GGP Statistics South Africa, South African Tourism and Provincial Treasury, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Analysis

Total and direct employment Statistics South Africa, South African Tourism and Provincial Treasury, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Analysis

Geographic spread South African Tourism departure surveys and trend analysis

Performance Delivery Environment
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, trading as Tourism 
KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN), was established in terms of the 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act, 1996, as amended by Act No. 
2 of 2002, and is responsible directly or indirectly for the 
development, promotion and marketing of tourism into and 
within the Province.

in carrying out its responsibilities, TKZN uses a five-year 
strategic plan as a guide that, in turn, is informed by a range 
of other tourism documents and legislation, including the 
Provincial Growth Development Strategy (PGDS), the Spatial 
Development Framework, the National Tourism Sector 
Strategy (NTSS), the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Master Plan and 
the policy direction of the provincial government. The strategy 
also takes into consideration recommendations within the 
National Tourism Domestic Growth Strategy, the international 
Segmentation Study, the Domestic Segmentation Study and 
the Global Competitiveness Study. 

The tourism sector is regarded as an important economic 
driver, partly due to its ability to generate employment 
opportunities without significant capital investment. it 
contributes approximately 9.3% to the country’s GDP.

in developing its Annual Performance Plan for 2018/2019, 
TKZN reflected on the role that regional tourism plays in 
sustaining and increasing tourism numbers into a destination 

and, therefore, seeks to increase efforts to develop tourism 
interests within the African continent and in the SADC 
countries in particular. TKZN will also continue with its efforts 
in the BRiC countries, and, in line with the national efforts, 
focus on domestic tourism to boost numbers.

TKZN’s contribution to transformation in the tourism industry 
cuts across all programmes, more specifically on an enhanced 
business support programme for black-owned business, 
both in leisure and business tourism. Working together with 
relevant municipalities, TKZNs also aim to further unlock the 
potential of secondary cities and small towns for these to 
have increased tourism, thereby creating sustainable jobs 
and boosting their local economies.

Organisational Environment
As a public entity, TKZN has various stakeholder interests 
to deal with, including national, provincial and local 
government, the tourism trade, the private sector, host 
communities, international and domestic tourists, the media, 
TKZN suppliers and internal staff. in this regard, the Strategic 
Plan recognises all of its stakeholders’ expectations and 
sets TKZN up to deliver with regard to those expectations, 
along with the revised B‐BBEE sector code that seeks to 
accelerate the de-racialisation of the South African economy 
and to fast track the re‐entry of previously marginalised 
communities into the mainstream economy. Furthermore, 
B‐BBEE endeavours to transform the South African economy 
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to enable the meaningful participation of black people, women, youth and rural communities in the mainstream economy in a 
manner that has a positive impact on employment, income redistribution, structural readjustment and economic growth. The 
Plan captures TKZN’s commitment to the people of KwaZulu-Natal. 

To this end, an intensified training and skills development programme, market access initiatives, as well as a focus on quality 
business planning and packaging have been rolled out, and attention has been given to quality standards and assurance issues. 

Corporate governance remains pivotal to the Organisation’s operation, complemented by the creation of an environment 
conducive to employee development and motivation. A strong leadership team (the Board and senior management) and overall 
commitment from all employees underpins the successful delivery of the Plan.

The Plan is fully aligned to deliver on TKZN’s mandated role and to realise the overarching goals of growing GDP contribution, 
expanding employment and helping transform the sector. The APP affirms TKZN’s strategic goal and objectives, namely: 

STRATEGIC OUTCOME-ORIENTED GOAL

Strategic outcome oriented goal Preferred tourism destination in the country

Goal statement
Deepen and develop the positioning of KZN as a preferred tourism destination for domestic and global 
tourism

Goal indicator increased number of tourists visiting KZN

Strategic objectives
Provide guidance, support and direction in terms of tourism policies, legislation and marketing  strategies
implementation of the KZN Tourism Master Plan
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Purpose
• To provide strategic leadership in the development and promotion of tourism for the Province, create an enabling environment 

for tourism stakeholders, as well as champion TKZN’s strategy development with overall responsibility for strategic planning 
and organisational accountability.

Strategic Objectives
• Strategic leadership in destination marketing and good governance. 

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGET

PROGRAMME 2017/2018 2018/2019

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Budget Actual Expenditure Variance

Office of the CEO 9 718 9 115 603 9 028 9 001 27

TOTAL 9 718 9 115 603 9 028 9 001 27

Measurable Objective Programme Performance 
Indicator

Annual 
Target (APP) 
2018/2019

Actual 
Performance

Variance Comments

To achieve an unqualified 
audit finding

Percentages in the 
implementation of the 
action plan as per the risk 
register

100% 100% N/A

To achieve unqualified audit 
findings on performance 
and financial  information

1 1 N/A

KZN tourism coordination 
structures utilised to drive 
destination marketing

Board Committees  on the 
Provincial Tourism Forum 
and the Provincial Tourism 
Working Group meetings

16 31 +15 Variance for this indicator was 
due to the HR special committees 
where members discussed 
matters of ROPETT.  The Audit and 
Risk Committee matters where 
the appointment of independent 
board members was deliberated

Number of stakeholder 
engagement platforms 
created to give feedback on 
the performance and trends 
in the tourism sector, in 
relation to TKZN activities

1 1 N/A

Performance information 
Programme 1:  
Chief Executive Officer’s Office
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Purpose
• To be the custodian of knowledge management to inform 

KZN’s tourism strategies and plans, and to facilitate 
tourism information provision and dissemination. 

Strategic Objectives
• inform TKZN’s marketing approach through tourism 

intelligence provision by 2019 
• Be the custodian of knowledge management for 

destination promotion by 2019

Key Performance Areas 
• Research, information and knowledge management
• information office and distribution services
• information and communication technology 
• Quality assurance and benchmarking

Programme Performance Highlights
Research
During the year under review, Tourism KZN conducted 
economic assessments surveys on a range of big events 
hosted across the Province, such as the Mandela Marathon, 
the AFREhealth Congress, the Amashova Cycle Race, the Drak 
Challenge, the Midmar Mile, the Dusi Canoe Marathon and 
the Comrades Marathon.

Furthermore, a Tourism intelligence Report was produced to 
give the most up-to-date information on the performance of 
the tourism sector. 

in order to understand consumer behaviour in Africa and 
SADC, TKZN took a closer look at the Africa Air and Land 
markets that travel to South Africa and KZN. 

TKZN also undertook and completed various pieces of 
research, which included the Small Towns Study. This was 
to examine the small town’s potential to grow tourism in a 
bid to spread tourism and its impact across the Province. The 
study looked at infrastructure, tourism products, signage, 

events and historical sites.  This would assist in creating a 
more diverse tourism offering for tour operators and tourists 
looking to visit KwaZulu-Natal.

These outcomes will further assist KZN in identifying new 
trends, creating more impactful campaigns and promoting 
more unique tourism products to both travel consumers and 
the tourism trade.

Information Services
in the 2018/2019 financial year, Tourism KZN continues 
with the important role of providing useful information to 
all tourists visiting the Province through skilled information 
officers. Tourism KZN runs four fully resourced information 
offices: uShaka Marine World and King Shaka international 
Airport, with the latest office being opened in Cape Town 
in the popular Long Street next to the famous hop-on, hop-
off open-top Red Bus stop where international tourists book 
their city tours at the sightseeing office.

TKZN began to roll out integrated self-service points and 
digital touch screens where tourists can check out tourism 
activities, popular attractions, events, restaurants and 
accommodation establishments. information Officers are also 
utilized to assist consumers with key destination information 
at various travel shows and events.

During Entrepreneurship and Careers Expos, information 
Officers are able to share vital tourism information with 
tourism students and those seeking information on starting 
a tourism businesses.

Information and Communication Technology
in order to stay abreast of the developing digital trends , TKZN 
has introduced the use of innovative technology like virtual 
and augmented reality. This has been rolled out in some of 
the consumers and trade shows that TKZN has participated 
in during the year. Plans are already underway to include a 
variety of tourism experiences, including some hidden gems 
from the small towns of KZN. 

Performance information 
Programme 2:  
Tourism information Services 
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The KZN Travel App – the KZN Travel Guide – is proving to be popular, particularly to smart phone users and especially those from 
the rest of the African continent. The entity is looking at implementing additional enhancements to the app to stay abreast of 
traveller demands.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGET

PROGRAMME 2017/2018 2018/2019

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance

Tourism Information Services 23 548 17 923 5 625 24 685 17 210 7 475

TOTAL 23 548 17 923 5 625 24 685 17 210 7 475

 

Measurable Objective Programme 
Performance Indicator

Annual 
Target (APP) 
2018/2019

Actual 
Performance

Variance Comments

Number of research reports 
produced to inform TKZN’s 
marketing plans

Number of research 
reports produced to 
inform TKZN’s marketing 
plans

17 17 Nil Nil

Percentage increase of 
information dissemination

Percentage increase 
in information  
dissemination

5%
205 183

209%
604 121

104%
+408 708

Overachievement is due to the increase 
of walk-ins at the information offices. 
Furthermore, the mobile application 
and website monitoring contributed 
towards the increase 

The annual planned target percentage 
is calculated from the baseline of  
(195 413)  100% with aim to increase 
by 5%  making 105%, therefore, the 
variance percentage is 104
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Purpose 
• To promote responsible tourism destination development 

and contribute towards transformation of KwaZulu-
Natal’s tourism sector.

Strategic Objectives 
• Demand-driven tourism development to enhance the 

destination’s product development
• Contribute towards transformation of tourism sector by 

2019

Key Performance Areas 
• Destination development
• Tourism Transformation

Programme Performance Highlights
Developing new and appealing destinations in the Province is 
a critical function of TKZN’s Tourism Development Department 
and the Entity has facilitated the progress of exciting projects 
that will ultimately bring thousands of additional tourists to 
the region. Further, as TKZN aims to make small, medium and 
micro-sized businesses sustainable, the Entity has provided 
them with essential industry training and helped them to 
access key local, regional and international markets, thereby 
furthering the Province’s transformation agenda.

Destination Development
As there continues to be a huge untapped potential for 
exciting new tourism attractions in the Province, the Tourism 
Development Department seeks and supports potential 
investors who could make such ideas become realities.

Three feasibility studies into potential new tourism attractions 
were carried out during the year and important decisions 
were made about each.

The Durban Eye/Wheel Project
The feasibility study conducted and business plan developed 
for this game-changing project – a giant Ferris wheel offering 

a spectacular 360-degree panoramic view of Durban city – 
revealed that there were positive prospects for this proposed 
attraction. Several sites were studied, with the eThekwini 
Municipality considering the beachfront Pavilion site near 
North Beach as well as other sites near uShaka Marine World. 
Potential funders have submitted a project proposal for 
consideration by European and US funding sources.

Inanda Amatata Mountain Cultural Village Project
Another feasibility study was undertaken on the Amatata 
Mountain cultural village project at inanda, an area whose 
scenic beauty sees tourists fly in on helicopters and picnic at 
spots overlooking the dam.

The idea is to develop the area into a tourist attraction that 
makes provision for entertainment facilities in order to 
appeal to an even larger market, while also protecting the 
site as an environmentally sensitive location. According to 
research carried out by the appointed service provider, the 
proposed project has the capacity to capture both local and 
international tourists who are interested in the adventure and 
leisure market.

Yandisa Lodge Margate
The third feasibility study was done on the purchase and 
transfer of ownership of Yandisa Lodge in Margate, a 
successful going concern that the owners wanted to sell 
before relocating overseas.

A black newcomer to the industry was interested in buying 
the lodge and the study was submitted for consideration 
to potential funders, including the National Empowerment 
Fund, to enable him to buy the business. 

Other Development Projects
Several other major projects are also in the pipeline, one of 
the most notable being the development of a world-class 
beach resort at Tinley Manor on the KZN North Coast that will 
be operated by one of the biggest wholesale tour operators 
in the world.

Performance information 
Programme 3: Tourism Development
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The project – which has been some three years in the planning 
and is being facilitated by TKZN, Trade & investment KwaZulu-
Natal and the landowners, Tongaat Hulett Development, is 
well advanced.

The development will be another game-changer for the 
Province and offers huge transformation opportunities, 
providing thousands of much-needed jobs and opportunities 
for the local community. 

There has also been progress on another proposed beach 
resort, Nonoti, also on the North Coast, that has also been 
on the radar for several years. This R2.5-billion community-
owned potential project is on agricultural land, and now that 
the most critical technical processes have been approved, 
including rezoning the land for commercial use, it effectively 
opens up the project to be taken to the various investment 
platforms to find funders.

Tourism Transformation
Several emerging entrepreneurs are part of Tourism KwaZulu-
Natal’s SMME development and incubation programme, 
who have been guided and nurtured as tour operators and 
accommodation services.

TKZN has revamped and enhanced its SMME incubation 
programme – not only so that more emerging tourism 
entrepreneurs are assisted, but also to ensure that 
their businesses experience sustainable development 
and growth. The programme continues to focus on 
leisure tourism SMMEs that operate as tour operators, 
travel agents and accommodation establishments, 
and its enhanced strategy is aimed directly at helping 
these emerging businesses survive during the start-up 
phase – the stage at which they are most vulnerable. 
The programme is a hybrid business incubator model and 
comprises both physical and virtual incubation support. As 
part of the programme’s Market Access initiative, incubatees 
are given the opportunity and support to participate in trade 
shows and exhibitions.

By enabling as many SMMEs as possible to showcase their 
businesses at local, national, regional and international 
tourism shows, TKZN is enabling them to build up their 
networks and establish relationships that will eventually 
bring them business, thereby helping to transform the 
tourism landscape in KZN. SMMEs from across the province 
are regularly selected to showcase on various platforms, 
thereby aiding the geographical spread of tourism.

As in previous years, TKZN is totally committed to supporting 
emerging small businesses to get into the tourism business in 
a realistic and sustainable way and to that end, TKZN provides 
training and offers selected entrepreneurs the opportunity to 
exhibit at local and international tourism trade and consumer 
shows.

During the year under review twenty-five (25) black-owned 
SMMEs were given comprehensive tour operator training by 
the Southern African Tourism Services Association.

We gave SMMEs from across the Province the opportunity to 
take part in the World Travel Market Africa, and thirteen (13) 
black and small tourism businesses also exhibited at the KZN 
Travel and Adventure Show, part of the ECR Home & Garden 
Show, while two others attended the Sanganai/Hlanganani 
World Tourism Expo in Bulawayo, Zimbabwe, to break into 
the SADC region.

Three other small businesses were further invited to take part 
in the Durban Business Fair, one of the biggest business and 
consumer shows in the area that has become a key tool in 
accelerating the development of SMMEs.

TKZN, in partnership with South African Tourism, also gave a 
Durban-based tour operator the opportunity to attend the 
New York Times Travel Show in January, 2019. 

This is the largest and longest-running trade and consumer 
show in North America, and the tour operator received 
the opportunity to promote KZN tour packages and meet 
potential clients and partners who sell South Africa to the US 
market.

TKZN also had an exhibition stand at the Vakantiebeurs 
trade and consumer show in Utrecht, Netherlands, which is 
a major tourism and leisure fair attracting more than 150 000 
Dutch, Belgium and French consumers looking for ideas for 
their next holiday. Two up-and-coming black-owned tour 
operators also showcased their packages, forging business 
relationships and securing promises from contacts that they 
would transact with them when visiting South Africa.

A Travel Academy, an educational incentive and training event 
for inbound tour operators in Cape Town, Johannesburg, KZN 
and SADC was hosted by TKZN. Five SMMEs also had the 
chance to expand their knowledge on what is available in the 
Province at the gathering, enabling them to package these 
offerings better.
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LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGET

PROGRAMME 2017/2018 2018/2019

Budget Actual Expenditure Variance Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance

Tourism Development 9 323 4 138 5 185 16 511 5 375 11 136

TOTAL 9 323 4 138 5 185 16 511 5 375 11 136

Measurable Objective Programme Performance 
Indicator

Annual 
Target (APP) 
2018/2019

Actual 
Performance

Variance Comments

Number of destination 
development 
interventions

Number of tourism 
feasibility studies 
formulated

3 3 Nil Nil

Number of interventions 
to provide targeted 
business support for 
black-owned tourism 
enterprises

Number of interventions to 
provide targeted business 
support for black-owned 
tourism enterprises

4 12 +8 Overachievement is attributed 
to unplanned opportunities 
for market access and business 
networking that included the KZN 
Travel Academy, New York Times 
Travel Show and international 
Franchise Expo
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Purpose
To market the destination nationally and internationally in 
order to increase tourist arrivals

Strategic Objectives
• To market KwaZulu-Natal in order to increase tourists’ 

arrivals 
• To forge strategic partnerships in order to enhance 

domestic and international arrivals

Key Performance Areas 
• Enhance both brand and leisure marketing
• Step change in international marketing 
• improve trade relations 

Performance Highlights 
TKZN is responsible for the dynamic promotion of KwaZulu-
Natal, advancing and expanding broad awareness of the 
Province both nationally and internationally. its objective is 
to improve visitor arrivals significantly in the Province and to 
promote the tourist flow across all the region’s offerings. in 
working to achieve these goals, the entity utilises a diverse 
range of marketing tools to best communicate all products 
and services to different stakeholder groups. 

The 2018/2019 saw TKZN implement campaigns that stimulate 
a culture of travel among both local and international visitors. 
in order to implement  the plans, it became necessary to 
explore avenues to expose potential international, regional 
and domestic travelers to well thought out ‘marketing by 
experience’ opportunities which showcase our Province.

Performance information 
Programme 4: Marketing
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Domestic and African Activations 
Domestic 
in the 2018/2019 financial year, the team intensified the ‘Do 
KZN’ campaign, launched in the 2017/2018 financial year, 
by developing a 360-degree campaign aimed at driving 
awareness and conversions in order to get tourists into the 
Province. This could not have been done without massive 
efforts to raise awareness about what our Province has to 
offer to tourists. This was  done through the participation in 
key trade and consumer platforms to entice interest.

The first quarter of the year saw a continued partnership 
between TKZN and the ECR House and Garden Show in 
Durban. This 10-day show attracts about 90 000 visitors and 
due to its scale, it, therefore, became a critical platform for 
destination marketing among patrons of the show. Fifteen 
small, medium and micro-sized businesses were given 
the opportunity to showcase their business at the show, 
cementing TKZN’s objective of driving tourism development 
in the Province.  

TKZN continued its presence in the Gauteng Getaway Show 
by taking up exhibition space at this three-day show, attended 
by more than 22 000 people. To intensify destination activities, 
TKZN partnered with KZN Trade, including Ezemvelo KZN 
Wildlife, Ukhahlamba Experiences, Tortilis Marketing and Wild 
5 Adventures. The virtual reality activities allowed the team to 
showcase the destination’s diverse range of activities, thereby 
driving interest and desire to visit the Province by those who 
went through these experiences. 

TKZN collaborated with Durban Tourism to market the City 
and Province at the weeklong activation in Bloemfontein. 
This strategic platform was chosen based on its reach, as well 
as the fact that Bloemfontein is one of the key markets for 
the Province. Through this activation, the team was able to 
promote KZN as an accessible and affordable destination. 

As part of the MOU with South African Tourism, TKZN 
marketing embarked on a series of activations around the 
Durban area. The Activation at Cornubia Mall afforded the 
team an opportunity to showcase the destination’s diverse 
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offering among visitors at the mall. The Gagasi Beach Festival 
at the Bay of Plenty provided a perfect platform for the team 
to drive awareness of the Province’s offerings. UKhozi’s Nyusa 
ivolume at the Moses Mabhida Stadium was attended by 
hordes of consumers, allowing TKZN branding opportunities 
in order to intensify the team’s awareness drive. 

Through TKZN’s partnership with Followme2Africa, the team 
was able to persuade Followme2Africa to host their edition 
of the SA Travel Academy in KZN, which had previously been 
held in Gauteng for three years. Sixty (60) top-performing 
travel agents were duly trained and exposed to the 
destination’s various offerings so they can sell KZN packages 
with confidence. 

in May 2018, KZN hosted Africa’s Travel indaba. Twenty-three 
African countries attended, as either exhibitors or buyers, with 
the overall registration reaching the 7 000 mark, an increase of 
4% on 2017. TKZN, in Partnership with Trade and investment 
KwaZulu-Natal (TiKZN), highlighted the destination through 
an exhibition stand housing KZN Routes (The Battlefields 
Route, Route 66, The Midlands Meander, The Birding Route, 

Southern Explorer, N3 Gateway, The Drakensberg Route and 
Route 22). As part of the Organisation’s tourism development 
mandate, emerging black businesses were also given a 
chance to display their businesses as well as take part in a 
matchmaking session with SADC. 

With the introduction of a District Support and Co-ordination 
Programme within the marketing department, which is 
aimed at helping municipalities with the implementation of 
effective tourism development and marketing initiatives as 
well as synergising provincial and local government tourism 
programmes, TKZN was able to share its programmes and 
insights on the district plans in order to identify areas of 
collaboration.  As part of this district coordination programme, 
TKZN actively participated in various district municipality 
platforms, including the following: 
• The Amajuba District Growth and Development Forum, 

which looks at economic initiatives, with tourism 
identified as the key economy driver for the area

• uMkhanyakude District LED/Tourism Forum 
• Mtubatuba Municipality LED and Tourism Forum
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• uMhlabuyalingana Municipality LED/Tourism Forum and 
Marketing Campaign

• Zululand District Municipality Tourism Forum meeting
• TKZN participated in the project conceptualisation 

meeting at KwaDukuza Municipality, which has prioritised 
the development of a Nokukhanya Luthuli Street Tourism 
Precinct and the key to unlocking the tourism potential of 
the area, thereby enhancing the region with heritage and 
township tourism

• TKZN also worked closely with the uKhahlamba 
Municipality to help with the co-ordination of their first 
Tourism Summit, which was part of the Drakensberg 
Extravaganza. The summit brought together all sector 
roleplayers to debate how to grow tourism numbers 
into the Drakensberg region, as well as to market the 
Drakensberg as a possible business and conference venue

• TKZN collaborated with TiKZN and iLembe District 
Municipality on a district road show where various 
stakeholders shared their support programmes and 
presented on how the district and the trade can benefit 
from them

Africa 
TKZN marketing intensified its activities in the Africa region. 
The team acknowledges the significance of the Africa region, 
as it is constitutes 60% of international tourists into the 
Province. During the year under review, the team was involved 
in a series of activations and trade shows in the region, with 
the aim of driving awareness of the destination, stimulating 
interest in order to drive conversion. 

TKZN attended the Fikani Trade and Consumer show in 
Maputo Mozambique. This is a Tourism Expo organised by the 
Federaco Mozambique de Turismo e Hotelaria (FEMOTUR) 
– Mozambican Federation of Tourism and Hospitality. The 
platform afforded TKZN an opportunity to engage directly 
with consumers, travel agents and tour operators, through a 
three-day activation aimed at driving awareness of KZN as a 
province. 

The TKZN stand was awarded the best foreign exhibitor 
stand, this being attributed to it being an interactive and 
most visited stand for the duration of the expo. 
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TKZN Marketing collaborated with Houston Travel Services, 
a renowned tourism event management company that 
organises Sportlight Travel Workshops, Roadshows and 
Exhibitions in Africa, Central and Eastern Europe, China, 
Mexico and America. Houston marketing creates a platform 
for tourism trade to exploit marketing opportunities and 
build trade relations to promote the destination offerings. 
This platform was targeted by TKZN marketing as it gives 
access to critical travel tour operators in the Africa region, it 
also afforded TKZN with an opportunity to drive destination 
awareness to a wide range of prospective partners, and 
assisted in creating and strengthening trade relations with 
tourism partners from the continent. 

in February 2019, TKZN collaborated with South African Tourism 
in the hosting of 34 tourism Agents and Tour Operators from 
the African continent who were on a South Africa educational 
tour.  These consisted of individual travel agents who, at the 
time, had never been to South Africa and were keen to learn 
and possibly include KZN in their packages. TKZN utilized this 
platform to position tourism product offerings through inviting 
local trade to present their unique selling points, lobbying for 
inclusion in the packages sold by these African agents. The 
platform was further used as a networking opportunity for 
the KZN trade to establish business linkages with the 34 Africa 
agent for future engagement.

in addition to the above, TKZN took part in the Sanganai/
Hlanganani World Tourism Expo in Zimbabwe, alongside SAT 
and the National Department of Tourism. The expo attracted 
leading African destinations and major world tourism markets 
and provided TKZN with the opportunity to engage with 28 
hosted buyers and exhibitors from key countries, including 
Ghana, Zambia, Zimbabwe as well as South Africa. Discussions 
with Zambian tour operators provided insights into where 
TKZN should consider conducting training for travel agents 
as well as trade activities to enhance their knowledge of 
KZN’s tourism offerings. Relationships were also forged with 
strategic stakeholders, including Ghana, a market TKZN plans 
to collaborate with on specific initiatives. Business linkages 
were also established with a Zimbabwe inbound tour operator 
who is considering packaging KZN to his clients.

International Activations 
For destination travel to succeed, international linkages have 
to be fostered and nurtured. TKZN Marketing, therefore, 
continued with business-to-business engagements aimed at 
encouraging travel operators and travel agents to promote 
and sell KZN as a destination.

KZN Tourism did this by entering into Joint Marketing 
Agreements with leading trade agents globally to utilise their 
platforms to drive conversion and awareness of destination 
KZN.

Current collaborations were revisited and improved and as 
a result, South African Tourism hub heads were once again 
tapped into in order to gain better access to their platforms 
to drive awareness of destination KZN. To support these, 
TKZN marketing continued to work closely with the Route 
Development Team to help drive increased direct air access 
into the Province. 

Trade Hosting
Trade hosting is a crucial means of promoting KwaZulu-Natal 
as a destination to a variety of key industry players and media 
specialists. in the period under review, TKZN, in partnership 
with Africa and Beyond, hosted eight travel agents from 
the UK who were exposed to the Midlands, Drakensberg, 
Battlefields and Durban. 

in partnership with Tourvest, a Destination Management 
Company based in South Africa, TKZN hosted agents from 
Tenzing Travel in the Netherlands and from Tourvest in KZN. 
The hosting covered two key strategic objectives, namely 
to drive awareness of Destination KwaZulu-Natal and its 
diverse offerings and to encourage geographic spread. The 
agents experienced the tourist offerings of the Midlands, 
Drakensberg, Battlefields, Elephant Coast and Durban. 
The purpose of the hosting was to equip the agents with 
destination information so that they can sell the Province 
with authority. 

TKZN, in partnership with SA Tourism india, hosted a group 18 
indian travel agents to KZN. Their itinerary included safari and 
Durban experiences. in order to enhance their destination 
knowledge, the team organised a speed marketing session 
where KZN trade got an opportunity to present their products 
to these agents. Twenty KZN products and experiences were 
promoted at this speed marketing session.  

During the period under review, TKZN hosted the second leg 
of the annual KZN Travel Academy. the host venue. Forty-two 
(42) agents from tour operators in South Africa, attended the 
Academy. The invitation this year was also extended to tour 
operators in the Southern African Development Community 
(SADC), in line with the increased focus on the Africa region. 
The products that were showcased included accommodation 
establishments, airlines and activity owners. 
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Agent Training 
Proper training and product knowledge of TKZN agents 
working abroad is vital to all campaigns. TKZN embarked 
on the Germany in-country agents’ training. This is part the 
Joint Marketing Agreement (JMA) with Thomas Cook to assist 
in promoting KZN packages. The workshops took place in 
Chemnitz, Dresden, Berlin and Leipzig were attended by up 
to 400 travel consultants. 

TKZN undertook  trade call visits with Private Safari, 
Followme2africa and Tour D’ Afrique where  TKZN trained 
about 30 agents on KwaZulu-Natal. The purpose of the 
training was to equip the agents with destination information 
to enable them to sell the destination with confidence. 

TKZN participated in the Netherlands SAT roadshow. 
Although SAT reported that the market showed a decline for 
South Africa in 2017, this market showed consistency for KZN 
between 2014 and 2016 in that it remained in the Province’s 
top six long haul arrivals source markets in this period. TKZN’s 
reason for participating at the roadshow was to increase 
destination awareness and reinforce trade relations so that 
agents consider promoting and selling KZN to their clients 
and for tour operators to increase KZN product marketing. 
The platform gave TKZN access to approximately 200 tour 
operators and travel agents.

TKZN participated in the Southern Africa Tour Operators 
Association (SATOA) roadshow, which took place in the UK 
(Glasgow, York and Manchester). SATOA has been promoting 
sub-Saharan Africa and the indian Ocean to UK consumers 
and travel trade professionals since 1982. The Association 
has established an extensive network, providing its members 
with a valuable platform to market their offerings. TKZN is 
member of SATOA and as such was able to participate on this 
platform. Through TKZN’s participation, about 40 agents were 
trained on destination KZN, raising awareness of the Province 
to the UK trade. TKZN also trained 200 French in-country 
travel agents at workshops in Paris, Lyon and Marseille.

in order to ensure continued visibility in the US market, TKZN 
participated at the Goway Bazaar US, an inaugural event 
organised by Goway Travel. Goway is one of the largest tour 
operators with over 120 retail agents across North America. 
This event was aimed at upskilling the agents with information 
and equipping them to sell destination KZN with confidence, 
thus increasing bookings and ultimately contributing to 
growth in visitor numbers to KZN. Goway Travel is a JMA 
partner for TKZN and their ground handler is Thompson’s 

Tours, who also participated on this platform. The Goway 
Bazaar US is a combination of a tradeshow and workshops and 
is planned to take place annually in different states, which will 
be strategically selected based on performance and demand. 

TKZN participated in the Goway workshops in Toronto and 
Edmonton, Canada. Through these workshops, the team 
trained Goway agents on KZN product offerings and helped 
with itinerary options. The team also participated at the US 
OnShow roadshow, a series of workshops in four US states: 
Boston, Chicago, Seattle and Los Angeles. More than 300 
travel agents were trained and these were specifically agents 
looking for product updates as well as expanding their client 
offering. 

TKZN also took part in the SAT China roadshow in Beijing, 
Chongqing and Shenzen. The team had the opportunity to 
interact and sell KZN to more than 300 travel traders. Apart 
from the event being a valuable networking opportunity, it 
was also a platform to boost confidence in the destination 
among the Chinese out-bound operators and travel agents. 
The Mandarin translated destination presentation made it 
easy for TKZN to sell the Province and be understood by the 
Chinese agents. Partnerships remain the key to ensuring 
growth from this market, and TKZN will have further 
engagements with SAT China as well as the KZN trade to 
ensure that they are well equipped to better cater for the 
needs of Chinese travellers.

Trade and Consumer Shows 
TKZN participated at the 2018 instalment of the World Travel 
Market, which took place in London from 5-6 November 2018. 
TKZN used the business-to-business platform to engage with 
tourism trade in the UK to promote KZN and to encourage 
the use of the Heathrow-Durban direct route in order to 
stimulate air services demand for the route. TKZN was able to 
meet with about 24 key players in the UK market. As an added 
advantage, the team attended educational seminars, which 
gave valuable insights into trends in the tourism sector.

TKZN participated at Vakantiebeurs, which took place in 
Utrecht, Netherlands from 9-13 January 2019. TKZN took a 
stand that was set within the Africa pavilion, where the team 
engaged with over 300 traders and consumers. TKZN used 
this platform to expose SMMEs to an international platform, 
therefore, two emerging tour operators attended the show. 
TKZN used the first day of the show to engage the tourism 
trade about KwaZulu-Natal as tourist destination and the 
balance of the show days were consumer days. 
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TKZN participated at iTB (internationale Tourismus-Börse) 
2019, which took place in Berlin, Germany. TKZN took up an 
exhibition space within the SAT stand, affording the team an 
opportunity to engage with about 137 traders, advertisers 
and consumers. The KZN stand was strategically located 
at the hub of activities, which ensured maximum visibility 
for the Province. At the show, TKZN had the opportunity 
to have a live interview with a leading German TV station, 
which ensured visibility beyond the iTB. The team also had 
an opportunity to attend sideshows, helping with collecting 
insights into the German Market. 

The iTB meetings resulted in TKZN getting an opportunity to 
participate at EXPO 365, which is an online exhibition (active 
for 365 days) where agents from everywhere in the world get 
an opportunity to interact with virtual exhibitors, learning 
about what the destination has to offer. TKZN will utilise this 
platform to drive awareness of destination KZN, engage with 
traders who attend the virtual expo, and encourage them to 
include KZN in their itineraries. The first expo launched on 27 
March and TKZN is liaising with SAT for performance stats. 

TKZN participated at the New York Times Travel Show that 
took place from 25-27 January 2019 in the USA. The New York 
Times Travel Show is an annual trade and consumer show 

that attracts more than 500 exhibitors, including more than 
170 travel destinations. The event attracts more than 30 000 
industry professionals, conducting seminars and conferences 
where visitors get to receive free tips and knowledge about 
destination marketing, travellers’ needs and the industry. 
TKZN participated under the banner of SAT. TKZN was 
afforded an opportunity to do a destination presentation at 
the Focus on Africa Conference alongside Botswana Tourism, 
Ruwanda Tourism and Wesgro. This is one of the key platforms 
for KZN, which provides direct contact with both trade and 
consumers. 

Joint Marketing Activities 
TKZN entered into a JMA with Knecht Reisen for the promotion 
of KZN in Switzerland, as well as the packaging and selling of 
the packages into the Province.

TKZN signed a Joint Marketing Agreement with Thomas Cook 
Germany. Their deliverables include printing posters and 
flyers promoting KZN packages that they are now selling and 
are distributing to 9 000 travel agents contracted to them. 
This also includes adverts to feature on Thomas Cook’s annual 
brochures as well as digital marketing activities on their 
online platforms.
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TKZN signed a JMA with Goway Travel from 1 October 2018 
to 30 September 2018. Goway Travel is one of the largest 
tour operators with over 120 retail agents in North America. 
Their deliverables include raising awareness for KZN through 
their different online and print platforms, increasing brochure 
listings, as well as increasing their bookings to KZN. 

Airline Marketing Support 
Air Namibia
TKZN collaborated with Air Namibia to grow and sustain direct 
international landings into KZN Shaka international Airport. 
This was aimed at sustaining the Durban Gaborone route. An 
activation was conducted in Windhoek, Namibia and as part 
of the activation, TKZN had a media engagement where TKZN 
and Air Namibia got to engage directly with the Namibia 
media on the KZN tourism offering, identifying possible 
areas of partnerships in the profiling of the destination, thus 
making KZN a top-of-mind tourism destination within the 
Namibian market.

Furthermore, TKZN also landed an opportunity to workshop 
and present to Namibian tour operators, agents, associations 
and tourism services on the unique offerings within the 
destination, lobbying them to include KZN in their packages 
aimed at driving numbers into the Province. The team 
concluded the tour with a consumer activation at the Grove 
Mall, where TKZN collaborated with SAT in the rolling out 
of this initiative. TKZN’s activation included a virtual reality 
experience that has gained momentum with consumers as 

it gives them a feel of what a destination has to offer, thus 
encouraging them to explore the Province.

Air Mauritius 
TKZN, in partnership with Air Mauritius, hosted travel 
agents from Mauritius on an educational tour to enhance 
their knowledge and ability to better package and sell KZN. 
The aim was to improve trade relations and to attract more 
numbers from Mauritius and from other countries served by 
Air Mauritius in order to ensure route sustainability.

British Airways 
Direct access to the region is critical and the team continues 
to work closely with the Route Development Committee, 
which TKZN co-chairs, to help drive direct connectivity 
into the Province. The highlight of this interaction was the 
announcement, at Africa Travel indaba, that British Airways 
was to start flying direct from London Heathrow Airport to 
Durban’s King Shaka international Airport. The first flight was 
at the end of October 2018. 

The Route Development Committee partnered with British 
Airways to drive a destination marketing campaign aimed at 
stimulating  the route, increase the number of tourists who 
land in King Shaka international Airport, thus increasing the 
number of tourists into the Province. This campaign is yielding 
positive returns for the Province; the airline has improved 
tourist numbers into King Shaka international, with the latest 
load factor stats (March 2019) revealing that the flight is now 
sitting at 95% loading factors. 
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LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGET

PROGRAMME 2017/2018 2018/2019

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance

Marketing 36 620 30 386 6 234 55 125 61 039 (5 914)

TOTAL 36 620 30 386 6 234 55 125 61 039 (5 914)

Measurable Objective Programme Performance 
Indicator

Annual 
Target (APP) 
2018/2019

Actual 
Performance

Variance Comments

Number of programmes 
implemented for 
destination awareness

Number of activities 
implemented  for the 
annual domestic tourism 
marketing campaign

4 20 +16 To ensure that marketing gains traction 
in the market to drive awareness and 
consideration, strategic partnerships 
were formed with media partners 
that saw the team enjoying discounts 
allowed for greater exposure. This 
resulted in the team enjoying the 
exposure in additional platforms than 
what had been originally planned 

Number of activities in 
implementing tourism  
programmes

16 41 +25 The operationalisation of MOUs (South 
African Tourism)  and JMAs with key 
partners in countries has seen the team 
getting exposure to more platforms, 
aimed at driving numbers into the 
province. 

Number of partnerships 
created and maintained

Number of partnerships 
implemented with tourism 
trade

4 8 +4 The partnership was with SAT who 
brought in 34 Africa traders and TKZN 
ensured that KZN traders presented 
their offerings on the platform
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Purpose
To bid for business events nationally and internationally 
that have researched potential to contribute substantially to 
the KwaZulu-Natal economy, and to contribute towards the 
transformation of the Province’s business tourism sector.

Strategic Objectives
• increase the level of business tourism flow to KwaZulu-

Natal
• Contribute to the transformation of KwaZulu-Natal’s 

business tourism sector

Key Performance Areas 
• Number of bid proposals prepared 
• Comprehensive data set and understanding of KwaZulu-

Natal’s business event venues and services

Performance Highlights
The Convention Bureau is mandated to increase the number 
of business events in KZN, thus increasing the number 
of MiCE activities (meetings, incentives, conferences and 
exhibitions). The aim is also to focus on the geographical 
spread of conferences to give destinations, other than the 
main cities, the opportunity to get involved in this exciting, 
lucrative business.

Another role is to promote the radical economic transformation 
of the business tourism sub-sector and quarterly workshops 
have been hosted for a range of black-owned SMMEs in the 
eleven (11) district municipalities in the Province.

Activities
The Convention Bureau continued its vital role of bidding 
for and securing international conferences and meetings. 
important key global conferences were secured, including 
the intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, the Global 
Communications Association, the international Congress 
and Convention Association (iCCA) Meetings Programme, 

the international Forest Enterprise to be held in Richards Bay 
in October 2019, World Halaal Day and the World Football 
Summit, which will be held in Africa for the first time in 2020.

This year, KZN hosted the Forbes Woman Africa Leading 
Women Summit in March headlined by supermodel and 
philanthropist Naomi Campbell. Forbes Africa, in partnership 
with CNBC Africa, empowered 100 youth by offering them a 
mentorship opportunity with the world-renowned model, 
the National Youth Development Agency, and the Oprah 
Winfrey Academy for Girls.

Support Committees
The Convention Bureau established and maintained a series 
of support committees to raise funds and resources for 
several business events. This support included a welcome 
desk at King Shaka international Airport, securing discounted 
accommodation, negotiated special airfares for delegates 
and ensuring that pre- and post-events take place.

The committees aim to ensure the success of the events and 
to convert the visiting business tourists into ambassadors and 
future leisure tourists for the destination.

Driving Transformation
The Convention Bureau partnered with the international 
Association of Professional Conference Organizers (iAPCO) to 
enable a structured training programme to be implemented 
to train and certify local black-owned businesses.

Several mentorship opportunities were given to SMME 
businesses and the Convention Bureau sponsored two SMME 
businesses to attend the Meetings Africa gathering.

SMME development workshops were held in Kokstad and 
uKhahlamba, which was attended by 60 SMMEs, who were 
introduced to the range of support services offered to them 
by the National Department of Tourism, the Convention 
Bureau and the SA Association of the Conference industry 
(SAACi).

Performance information 
Programme 5: Convention Bureau
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Workshops were held for SMME members in the incubation 
programme in various other districts including the uThungulu 
District Municipality, uThukela District Municipality and 
uMzinyathi District Municipality, with SAACi providing 
mentorship opportunities to event organisers to become 
members of SAACi and professional conference organisers.

Several small businesses received business opportunities at 
the international Telecommunications Union conference, 
while delegates attending the BRiCS Business Council also 
took various township and rural tourism tours.

Funding was obtained for further training with the 
international Association of Professional Congress Organisers 
in October 2019.

Small businesses also received the opportunity to attend site 
inspections by visiting conference organisers who were in the 
Province to vet some of the facilities before making the final 
decision on the host cities.

Conference organisers were introduced to township and 
rural tourism in the hope that when their delegates attend 
their conferences, they would also find the time for leisure 
activities.

The economic impact of all the business events secured 
thus far will exceed the R1 billion mark. in addition, they will 
provide a range of other key benefits such as knowledge and 
capacity building through knowledge transfer by means of 
the presentations and displays at these events.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGET

PROGRAMME 2017/2018 2018/2019

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance

Convention Bureau 14 241 12 475 1 766 18 765 14 226 4 499

TOTAL 14 241 12 475 1 766 18 765 14 226 4 499

Measurable Objective
Programme Performance 

Indicator
Annual 

Target (APP) 
2018/2019

Actual 
Performance

Variance Comments

Number of bid proposals 
submitted

Number of business event 
proposals submitted for 
hosting in KwaZulu-Natal

25 25 Nil Nil

Number of black-owned SMME  
interventions

Number of mentorship 
interventions given to 
SMME businesses

12 9 -3 Travel memo was approved 
late, this not allowing CB 
to arranged participation 
of SMMEs in the identified 
platforms  for Q1
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Performance information 
Programme 6: PR and Communications

Purpose
• To drive Tourism KwaZulu-Natal communication in order 

to enhance a positive destination image

Strategic Objectives
• Build a positive KZN tourism destination image 
• Build enhanced stakeholder relations management

Key Performance Areas
• Proactive media relations and the building of a positive 

image of the destination
• Continuously communicate about organisational key 

engagements and achievements with internal and 
external stakeholders       

• identify leveraging opportunities with supported events 
and co-ordination of supported events

• implement an extensive tourism safety and awareness 
programme 

• Champion improved customer care and service excellence 
within the sector 

Performance Highlights
Internal Communications
internal news bulletins such as The Exceptional Times and 
Media News were used to keep staff updated on tourism 
related news, including events with major tourism spinoffs. 
Special CEO’s briefings were held every quarter to update 
staff on the Public Entities’ Rationalisation.

External Communications
The What, Where and When magazine was utilised to share key 
news and information to potential travellers. The magazine 
was also used to promote various ‘Do KZN’ packages to 
encourage readers to travel in KZN. The CEO’s column shared 
key tourism news with readers, including the launch of the 
KZN Travel App as well as ‘must attend’ events across the 
Province. 

This year, TKZN introduced a quarterly trade newsletter that 
focused on tourism trade news. The aim was to create a 
communication tool for the Authority to share key news about 
destination KZN with the travel trade across the globe. This 
year, the newsletter focused on news pertaining to Africa’s 
Travel indaba, the newly launched British Airways direct route 
to Durban and major tourism product developments.

Social media continues to be an effective communication 
tool for Tourism KZN. To date, these social media platforms 
have a combined audience of over 100 000 followers.

Media Liaison
Key media partnerships are integral to promote destination 
KZN and raise awareness of the Zulu Kingdom. 

in the year under review, TKZN partnered with various media 
outlets including print, radio and digital. This year, TKZN 
commenced publishing a weekly opinion piece by the ACEO 
in the Sunday Tribune and independent online that covered 
a variety of tourism related topics. Media campaigns were 
further amplified during Africa’s Travel indaba, Tourism Month 
and in the run up to and during holiday seasons.

in order to reach a wider audience and educate the greater 
public on tourism, TKZN partnered with the National 
Community Radio Forum to air an education drama series 
that was broadcast to 28 community radio stations across 
KZN, reaching an audience of over 2.5 million listeners.

TKZN released media statements during the year to share 
news with members of the media. These media statements 
generated massive media coverage for TKZN, resulting in 
media exposure to the value of R38 478 732 and a PR value 
of R115 149 018.

Hosting
During the year, TKZN partners with a number of influencers 
to promote KZN as a ‘must visit’ destination. The influencers 
included a number of much-loved public figures in South 
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Africa – actors from soapies such as Imbewu, The Seed, 
the local production Farewell Ella Bella and sports anchor 
Robert Marawa. These influencers were able to share some 
of the experiences in KZN with millions of their social media 
followers and rave about their experiences on various media 
platforms.

Public Relations
Tourism KZN continued to leverage a variety of events in KZN 
to drive greater destination awareness and encourage the 
culture of travel and ensure the geographic spread of tourists 
who attend the events in various parts of the province. This 
year, TKZN partnered with the Newcastle Jazz Festival, South 
Coast Bike Week, Vodacom Durban July, Tsogo Sun Amashova 
Durban Classic race, Gcwalisa iMabhida Maskandi Festival, 
Umthayi Cultural Festival, to mention a few.

To mark the Nelson Mandela Centenary celebrations, TKZN 
partnered with the Nelson Mandela Legacy Ride4Hope that 
saw top cyclists from across the country riding for charity 

from Vilakazi Street, Soweto to Nelson Mandela Capture Site 
in Howick over four days. 

During the festive season, TKZN underwent a vigorous festive 
season Public Relations campaign to ensure that visitors 
were spoilt for choice in the number of activities and events 
to enjoy. To that effect, TKZN partnered with EDTEA to host 
a number of events around the Province. This encouraged 
holidaymakers to travel and explore the greater parts of KZN.

in an effort to further entrench the culture of travel and boost 
domestic tourism, TKZN rolled out an amplified Tourism 
Month campaign across various media platforms. The Tourism 
Month celebrations were then celebrated at the Harry Gwala 
District where some of their top tourism experiences were 
showcased to the members of the media. 

To ensure that visitors continue to have the best tourism 
experience in the province, TKZN hosted the sixth provincial 
Lilizela Awards, which aims to recognise tourism players that 
provide exceptional services to tourists. This year, KZN had 85 
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finalists and 35 winners – the top three winners of the nine provinces. At the National Lilizela Awards, KZN went on to win 10 
awards, including the Emerging Tourism Entrepreneur of the Year winner.

During the peak travel seasons, TKZN distributed over 10  000 information brochures about destination KZN at various entry 
points to the Province.

To encourage the youth looking to enter the tourism sector, TKZN partnered with EDTEA on a Tourism Awareness Schools 
Programme. Through this programme, tourism students were given an opportunity to visit some of the tourism products to learn 
more of the sector. Furthermore, teachers and students went on excursions exploring some of the tourism products in KZN such 
as uShaka Marine World, King Shaka international Airport and Dube Trade Port.

During Africa’s Travel indaba, 42 tourism ambassadors were deployed in various spots to assist delegates with destination 
information such bus schedules, places to visit and directions to various tourism attractions. 

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGET

PROGRAMME 2017/2018 2018/2019

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance

Public Relations and 
Communications

18 853 20 549 (1 696) 29 967 36 485 (6 516)

TOTAL 18 853 20 549 (1 696) 29 967 36 485 (6 516)

Measurable Objective
Programme Performance 

Indicator
Annual 

Target (APP) 
2018/2019

Actual 
Performance

Variance Comments

improve destination brand 
awareness percentage

Targeted percentage 
of  destination brand 
awareness through media 
interventions

55% 48% -7% Similarities of the national 
and the provincial brand are 
seen as the challenge

Review of the current TKZN 
brand that is not similar to 
the SAT brand

increase rand value on media 
coverage received about the 
destination

increase the rand value of 
positive destination media 
coverage received globally

R110 million R124 164 249 +R14 1 64 249 Overachievement due to 
aggressive media plan

Number of service excellence 
incentive programmes  
conducted

Run a service excellence 
incentive  programme

1 1 Nil Nil

Number of tourism stakeholder 
intervention programmes 
conducted

Conduct roadshows with 
district municipalities to 
build and sustain relations

4 2 -2 Review in conducting 
this indicator delayed the 
execution 
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Performance information 
Programme 7: Corporate Services

Purpose
• To provide reliable enabling services to all departments 

within TKZN to execute their strategic objectives and fulfil 
TKZN’s mandate

Strategic Objectives
• Effective human resources management
• Effective management of TKZN financial resources 
• Contribution to the transformation of the KwaZulu-Natal’s 

economy
• Key Performance Areas 
• Conduct skills analysis
• Submission of workplace skills plan
• Turn-around time for bids and quotations
• Compilation and submission of the Annual Financial 

Statements (AFS)
• Completion and presentation of management accounts 
• Submission of statutory returns

Performance Highlights
The Corporate Services  Programme  comprises three 
subprogrammes, namely Human Resources and 
Administration, Supply Chain Management, and Finance. 
Each is viewed as being an enabler within the tourism 
authority, supporting other divisions to achieve their strategic 
objectives.  Efficiency and effectiveness are key elements of 
the programme, which plays the essential function of ensuring 
the organisation’s adherence to all laws and regulations and 
displays fiscal prudence.

Human Resources and Administration
The Human Resource Unit ensures that TKZN is adequately 
staffed to deliver on the mandate and service delivery 
objectives.

While recruitment for non-critical permanent positions was 
suspended due to the entity rationalisation process, the 
Human Resource Committee approved the recruitment of 
key critical positions on a short-term contract basis. These 

appointments will be effective until the finalisation of the 
rationalisation process.

TKZN had approximately 50 employees attending various 
training interventions during the year, and currently has 10 
employees on entity-sponsored bursaries. There are 22 interns 
obtaining work experience in the various programmes within 
TKZN. The Human Resources unit endeavors to source NQF-
aligned training that is aligned to individual development 
plans.

Given the uncertainty that might have been created by 
rationalisation, the entity has been able to maintain the staff 
turnover at less than 10%.

Several wellness activities took place during the year, with 
staff being encouraged to support interventions and to 
have a healthy, active lifestyle. These included workshops 
and presentations on stress management, resilience and 
relationships at work, depression and anxiety, as well as work-
life balance. 

Employees undertook various training programmes, which 
included:
• Management Development Programme
• Leadership coaching 
• Employment Equity training
• Smart Cities and Aerotropolis Masterclass

Procurement
The Supply Chain Management Unit continues to administer 
bids, manage contracts and provide support services to all 
functions in respect of procurement.

The department drives transformation through the 
Procurement Unit by procuring services from previously 
disadvantaged individuals (PDi) and insisting on partnerships 
to upskill disadvantaged individuals. The Entity procured over 
70% of its spend from PDis during the period, exceeding our 
annual target by 10%.
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Finance
The Finance Unit is responsible for the compilation of financial reports, internal controls, timely payment of service providers, 
debtors’ management and the submission of statutory returns.

Service providers to the Organisation were paid within 30 days of receipt of invoices in the department, with the exception of any 
requiring query resolution.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGET

PROGRAMME 2017/2018 2018/2019

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Budget Actual 
Expenditure

Variance

Corporate Services 20 915 21 512 (597) 22 720 24 690 (1 970)

TOTAL 20 915 21 512 (597) 22 720 24 690 (1 970)

Programme Performance 
Indicator

Annual 
Target (APP) 
2018/2019

Actual 
Performance

Variance Comments

Percentage of performance 
assessments conducted

Percentage of  annual 
performance agreements 
signed and assessments 
completed  

100% 86% -14% The shortfall is due to staff 
incapacitation of Head of 
departments, dismissals and 
resignation before assessment 
being finalised

Number of training programmes 
conducted

Number of training 
activities conducted for 
skills enhancement

16 15 -1 Training postponed due to the 
number of participants. Trainings 
attended were: First Aid; MDP 
– BBBEE; Smart Cities and 
Aerotropolis Masterclass

Turnaround time for  payment of 
suppliers

Pay service providers within 
30 days of  receipt of invoice

30 days 30 days Nil Nil

Ring fence percentage  of 
procurement budget through 
competitive  bidding to PDis

Ring fence percentage of 
procurement budget to 
PDis

55% 84% -29% Overachievement is because 
the Entity strives to achieve the 
usage of 100% PDis
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GOVERNANCE
PART C: 
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Executive Authority
The Board submitted performance information reports to the 
Executive Authority on a quarterly basis.

The Accounting Authority 
Introduction
The Board of TKZN is responsible for the establishment 
of a risk management approach, development of fraud 
prevention policies, effectiveness of internal audit and the 
audit committee, as well as other governance structures.  
These include management processes aimed at minimising 
any conflict of interest and the implementation of a Code 
of Conduct, together with safety, health and environmental 
issues faced by TKZN.

Management is responsible and accountable to the Board 
for the design, implementation and monitoring of the 
above-mentioned processes. in addition, it is responsible for 
integrating them into the day-to-day activities of TKZN.

Board Charter 
The Board Charter continues to regulate how business is 
conducted by the Board in accordance with the principles of 
good corporate governance. The Board Charter ensured that 
all Board members acting on behalf of the Authority were 
aware of their duties and responsibilities and the various 
legislation and regulations affecting their conduct. it also 
ensured that the principles of good Corporate Governance 

introduction

The KwaZulu-Natal Legislature, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the Public 
Entity, are responsible for corporate governance. Corporate governance embodies processes 
and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled and held to account. in addition 
to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s enabling legislation, and the Companies 
Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities is applied through the precepts of 
the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the principles contained 
in the King’s Report on Corporate Governance.

were applied in all their dealings in respect of and on behalf 
of the Authority. During the 2018/2019 financial year, the 
Authority’s Board Charter was reviewed and approved by the 
Board.

Corporate Governance
Adherence to the guiding principles of good corporate 
governance is imperative to Tourism KwaZulu-Natal.  To 
this end the Board continued to ensure that strategy, risk, 
performance and sustainability were fully integrated.  As 
per statutory requirement, the Board conducted the TKZN’s 
strategic Plan 2014-2019 review session during the second 
quarter of the 2018/2019 financial year. The session focused 
on key governance such as reviewing and  approving policies 
as well as dealing with issues of organisational performance 
as well as monitoring of the Tourism Master Plan, five-year 
implementation Plan and the alignment thereof to the 2014-
2019 strategy.   The implementation of good governance is 
fundamental to the way in which the Organisation conducts 
its operations. The Board, fully supported by the Executive 
Team and management structures, remains wholly committed 
to the implementation of the highest standards of corporate 
governance throughout TKZN.

During the 2018/2019 financial year, the Board continued 
to discharge its responsibilities accordingly as four 
statutory Board meetings were held during the year in 
accordance with the annual schedule of meetings. A good 
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governance framework remains in place and an experienced 
and committed Board has enabled the Organisation to 
effectively further underpin the integrity and efficiency of 
the Organisation within both KwaZulu-Natal and the wider 
tourism environment. Existing governance structures also 
helped shape quality and informed decision-making, while 
affording TKZN opportunities to optimally manage internal 
organisational and tourism sector risks.

Risk and Compliance 
TKZN regards most seriously the need for absolute 
transparency of action and complete compliance with 
all laws and regulations and it works continuously to 
maintain its governance status. During the review period, 
Board Committee meetings were convened in order to 
assist the Board to display its oversight role of monitoring 
operational performance, policy review processes, ensuring 
the proper discharge of enterprise risk management and 
management of internal control as directed by the Board 

charter. The 2018/2019 reporting period posed internal and 
external risks that could have been potentially devastating 
for the Organisation as the operating environment faced 
several obstacles, however, the collective knowledge and 
expertise vested in the Board, its Committees and Executive 
Management assisted TKZN to understand the risks faced and 
the successful mitigation of such risks.

Capacity Building
Several formal Director Development Programme courses 
were implemented in the 2018/2019 financial year and the 
Board participated as part of capacity building, which is 
encompassed in the Board Charter. Furthermore, the Board 
participated in tourism marketing promotion platforms 
with a view to enhancing knowledge in the field of leisure 
and business tourism. These platforms assisted the Board to 
exercise its oversight role effectively at Board and Committee 
level. 
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Name Designation Date 
Appointed

Date 
resigned

Qualifications Area of 
Expertise

Other Board 
Directorships

Other 
Committees 

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

Mr 
Sthembiso 
Madlala

Chairperson 1 May 2017 N/A Senior Teacher’s 
Diploma

Bachelor of Arts
Advanced 
Certificate in local 
government and 
Human Resources 
Management 

Educator
Human 
Resources 
Management

N/A N/A 7

Ms Patricia 
Lebenya

Deputy Board 
Chairperson 

Reappointed
1 May 2017 

N/A Diploma in Business 
Management and
 Bachelor of 
Administration 
(currently studying)

Human 
Resource 
Management 
Financial 
Management 

KZN 
Ezemvelo 
Wildlife; 
Estate Agent 
Affairs Board

Audit & Risk
Human 
Resources 
Committee 

23

Prof. Thandi 
Nzama

Chairperson:  
Convention 
Bureau 
Committee

Reappointed
15 November 
2017

N/A PhD (Geography); 
MSc (Environmental 
Management; 
MA (Geography); 
MEd; BEd; BA Hons 
(Geography); BPaed. 
(Geography, Biology 
and Education); 
Secondary Teacher’s 
Diploma

Tourism 
Development;
Human 
Resource 
Development

KZN 
Ezemvelo 
Wildlife, 
isimangaliso 
Wetlands Park 
Authority, 
KZN Amafa, 
ilembe 
Enterprise 
Development 
Agency

Marketing 
and Tourism 
Development 
Committee 

15

Mr Michael 
Jackson

Member Reappointed
1 May 2017

N/A Diploma in Hotel 
Management, 
General 
Management 
Development 
Course and 
Holiday inn Hotels 
University 
General 
Management 
Programme

Business and 
Leisure Tourism; 
Financial 
Management; 
Human 
Resource 
Management

Durban 
Chamber of 
industry and 
Commerce

Marketing 
& Tourism 
Development 
Committee 

Convention 
Bureau 
Committee

10

Mr 
Thamsanqa 
Mzileni

Member 1 March 2014

Reappointed 
15 November 
2017

N/A Matric, National 
Diploma in Public 
Management – 
incomplete

Human 
Resource 
Management

MiCT SETA 
Board

HR & 
Compensation

Convention 
Bureau 
Committee

21

Mr Terence 
Delomoney

Chairperson: 
Marketing 
& Tourism 
Development 
as at 
November 
2017

1 October 
2014
Reappointed
15 November 
2017

N/A Bachelor of 
Accountancy  
Diploma in 
Accountancy (Post 
graduate)
CA (SA) 1990:  
Member of the 
South African 
institute of Charted 
Accountants

Aviation; 
Human 
Resource 
Management; 
Financial 
Management

La Mercy 
Joint Venture 
Company
ilembe 
Chamber of 
Commerce

N/A 7
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Name Designation Date 
Appointed

Date 
resigned

Qualifications Area of 
Expertise

Other Board 
Directorships

Other 
Committees 

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

Dr Usha 
Roopnarian

Chairperson: 
HR and 
Compensation 
Committee

1 May 2017 N/A BA (Hons)
MA
PHD
LLM

Human 
Resources 

N/A Audit and Risk 
Committee

24

Mr Paulos 
Ngcobo

Chairperson:  
Audit and Risk 
Committee

1 May 2017 N/A Diploma:  Human 
resources
Diploma:  
international 
Relations

Human 
Resources 
international 
relations 

Dube Trade 
Port 

Marketing and 
TD Committee 

17

Prof. 
Thokozani 
Nzimakwe

Member 15 November 
2017

N/A B Admin (Hons), MA, 
PhD

Management; 
Governanc; 
Human 
Resources 

KZN Gaming 
and Betting 
Board

Convention 
Bureau 
Committee
HR and 
Compensation 
Committee

20

COMMITTEES

Committee No. of Meetings 
Held

No. of 
Members

Name of Members

Marketing and Tourism 
Development

4 4 Prof. Thandi Nzama
Mr Michael Jackson
Mr Terence Delomoney
Mr P. Ngcobo

HR & Compensation 10 4 Dr U. Roopnarian 
Ms Patricia Lebenya
Mr Thami Mzileni 
Prof. Thokozani Nzimakwe

Audit & Risk 7 5 Mr P. Ngcobo
Ms Patricia Lebenya
Mr Rakesh Garach
(independent Audit Committee member until 31 December 2018)
Mr Moshupi Mokgobinyane (independent Committee member until 31 
December 2018)
Mr M. Ngcobo

Convention Bureau 4 4 Prof. Thandi Nzama
Mr Michael Jackson
Mr T. Mzileni
Prof. Thokozani Nzimakwe
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REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEMBERS

Name Remuneration (R000) Other Allowance
(R000)

Other Imbursements
(R000)

Total
(R000)

Mr Sthembiso Madlala 537 N/A 1 538

Prof. Thandi Nzama 236 N/A 20 256

Ms Patricia Lebenya 419 N/A - 419

Mr Michael Jackson 163 N/A - 163

Mr Thamsanqa Mzileni 238 N/A 6 244

Mr Terence Delomoney N/A N/A

Mr Rakesh Garach 43 N/A 2 45

Dr Usha Roopnarain 283 N/A - 283

Mr Paulos Ngcobo 283 N/A 2 285

Prof. Thokozani Nzimakwe 230 N/A - 230

Mr Moshupi Mokgobinyane 40 N/A - 40

Mr Mbusiswa Ngcobo 12 N/A - 12

Risk Management
TKZN has a risk management policy to mitigate organisational 
risks. The Organisation conducted its annual risk assessment 
exercise, manages enterprise risks on an ongoing basis, 
and provides quarterly status reports in this regard.  The 
Audit and Risk Committee advises the public entity on risk 
management and independently monitors the effectiveness 
of risk management and reports to the Board on a quarterly 
basis. The Organisation’s management of risks has ensured 
that there are no impediments to the Entity’s performance. 
Furthermore, the Manager Board Secretariat, Risk and 
Compliance Services continued to act as the Organisation’s 
Risk and Compliance Officer.   

Internal Audit and Audit Committees
The Audit and Risk Committee is required to comprise a 
minimum of three members, for the period under review; 
currently it comprises five members. Two of the members 
are independent and the remainder are nominated from the 
Board.

The primary functions of the Committee include reviewing 
and recommending to the Board the following:

Annual Financial Statements
Examine and review the Annual Financial Statements with 
management and the external auditors before submitting to 

the department, and consider whether such documentation 
is complete and consistent with information known to 
members of the Committee, and reflects appropriate 
accounting principles. 
• Review with management and external auditors the 

results of the audit, including any difficulties encountered. 
• Review with management and the external auditors all 

matters required to be communicated to stakeholders 
under generally accepted auditing standards. 

Internal Control
• Considering the effectiveness of the Organisation’s 

internal control system, including information technology 
security and control 

• Understanding the scope of internal and external 
auditor’s review of internal control over financial 
reporting, and obtain reports on significant findings 
and recommendations, together with management’s 
responses: 
• Reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control 

systems
• Reviewing the control procedures followed by 

management
• Reviewing the controls designed to ensure that assets 

are safeguarded 
• Reviewing the Fraud Prevention Plan implemented to 

prevent and detect fraud 
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• Reviewing risk management and related policies 
• Reviewing compliance with prescribed accounting 

framework 

Internal Audit
The Audit and Risk Committee monitored, guided and 
supervised the functioning of internal audit, ensuring that 
the roles and functions of external and internal audit are 
sufficiently clarified and co-ordinated so as to provide an 
objective overview of the operational effectiveness of the 
Organisation’s system of internal control and reporting.

These include:
• Annually reviewing and approving the internal Audit 

Charter to ensure adherence to best practices 
• Approving the three-year internal Audit Strategic and 

Annual Operational plans and review performance 
against the plan

• Reviewing the adequacy of corrective action taken in 
response to significant internal audit finding

• Reviewing internal audit plans to ensure that high-risk 
areas are identified and mitigation strategies developed 

• Meeting separately with the Chief Audit Executive to 
discuss matters that the Committee believes should be 
discussed privately 

• Reviewing significant matters reported by the internal 
audit function 

• Reviewing the objectives and operations of the internal 
audit function 

• Assessing adequacy of performance of the internal audit 
function 

• Reviewing the co-operation and coordination between 
the internal and external audit functions

• Reviewing any significant disagreements or differences 
of opinion between management and the internal audit 
function 

• Evaluating the independence and effectiveness of the 
internal auditors
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RELEVANT INFORMATION ON THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Name Qualifications Internal or 
External

If internal, 
Position in the 
Public Entity

Date 
Appointed

Date Resigned No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

Mr Paulos Ngcobo Diploma:  Human Resources
Diploma:  international 
Relations

External N/A 1 May 2018 N/A 7

Dr Usha Roopnarain BA (Hons)
MA
PHD
LLM

External N/A 1 May 2018 N/A 7

Ms Pat Lebenya Diploma in Business 
Management and
 Bachelor of Administration 
(currently studying)

External N/A
Reappointed 
1 May 2018

N/A 6

*Mr Rakesh Garach Bachelor of Commerce 
(Accounting), University of 
Natal, Durban
Postgraduate Diploma in 
Accounting (Honours), 
University of Natal, Durban
CA (SA) 

External N/A 1 April 2013

Reappointed
1 October 
2017 

31 December 
2018

4

*Mr Moshupi 
Mokgobiyane

institution:
University of Natal – Degree: 
BCom (Hons) in Accounting 
& CTA

University of the 
Witwatersrand – 
Degree: BCom in Accounting

institution: University of 
South Africa – Current 
studies Degree: Masters in 
Accounting

External N/A 1 October 
2017

31 December 
2018

3

*Mr Mbusiswa 
Ngcobo

University of KwaZulu-Natal 
(Pmb)
Degree Obtained: B Com 
Accounting (Honours with 
CTA)
 
University of KwaZulu-Natal 
(Pmb)
Degree Obtained: BCom 
Accounting (Hons)

External N/A 28 January 
2018

N/A 2

* Independent Member – Audit & Risk Committee
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations
TKZN derives its mandate from a number of pieces of 
legislation and government policies. The Entity took the 
initiative to develop a compliance monitoring checklist, 
drawing from the key strategic documents governing the 
functioning of the Organisation. The checklist developed is in 
line with the minimum requirements set in terms of the King 
iii on compliance issues. The compliance checklist is updated 
on a quarterly basis to monitor issues of compliance within 
the Organisation and with the necessary laws and regulations. 

Fraud and Corruption  
The Authority has a fraud and corruption prevention policy 
in place. Officials are afforded the necessary confidentiality 
when reporting suspected fraudulent and corrupt activities. 
TKZN continues to implement recommendations from the 
Fraud Prevention Review, which was based on Provincial 
Treasury’s experience on numerous public sector forensic 
investigations and best practices knowledge. A database of 
the inherent fraud risk universe was mapped against TKZN’s 
strategic and operational environment. Action plans that were 
recommended where residual risk remained major, moderate 
or minor is still monitored and relevant fraud related risks 
were elevated to the quarterly risk register in order to monitor 
the mitigation of risks.

Minimising Conflict of Interest
Conflict of interest is managed through declarations of 
interests at every bid committee meeting. Where a member 
of the committee is conflicted, the member is requested to 
recuse themselves from any decisions pertaining to that bid. 

TKZN Conditions of Employment makes it clear that 
employment with TKZN is on a full-time basis. Hence, prior 
communication to and approval from management at an 
appropriate level is required before doing any externally 
remunerated work.  Furthermore, the register of annual 
declarations for the Board and Senior Management was kept.  
TKZN also ensured, where applicable, that the standards and 
disclosures required by the applicable legislative framework 
were observed and where applicable, were reflected in the 
Annual Report.

Code of Conduct 
The Code of Ethics and Conduct (‘the Code’) for TKZN is aimed 
at augmenting existing TKZN’s Policies and Procedures.  The 
spirit of the document is to support ethical conduct by 
all individuals covered by it. Compliance with the Code is 
required of all employees of TKZN. The Code also applies to 
contract labour, consultants, temporary employees, part-
time employees, casual employees, occasional employees, 
suppliers and others acting on behalf of, or dealing with, 
TKZN. Any breach of the code of conduct is dealt in 
accordance to the TKZN disciplinary policy and procedure. 
This involves identification of a breach through investigation 
of the alleged breach, determining guilt or innocence based 
on the evidence, and determining what appropriate sanction 
is to be given.  

Health Safety and Environmental Issues
The Occupational Health and Safety Policy is in place and the 
Entity has dedicated occupational health and safety officers 
who are in possession of relevant tools to deal with issues of 
health and safety within the Organisation. The Occupational 
Health and Safety Committee is in place and management 
continues to implement the abovementioned policy with 
particular focus given to the compliance and safety of the 
office building.

Board Secretary 
The Board Secretary acts as the gatekeeper of good corporate 
governance. The responsibilities enlisted in this position 
include ensuring the proper induction of new Board Members, 
providing the necessary guidance to Board members on good 
governance and changes in legislation. The Board Secretary 
is responsible for updating the charters and the provision 
of Board and Committee administrative support with the 
preparation and distribution of Board papers, minute keeping, 
Board evaluation, enterprise risk and corporate governance 
management, management of administration matters in the 
office of the CEO, shareholder liaison and administration of 
Executive Management meetings.
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Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility
The function of the Audit and Risk Committee is, primarily, to 
assist the Board in discharging its duties as they relate to the 
safeguarding of assets, the effective management of liabilities 
and working capital, the operation of adequate systems of 
internal controls, together with the preparation of financial 
reports and the Annual Financial Statements.

The Committee reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from Section 50(1) of the Public 
Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations.

The Audit and Risk Committee also reports that it has adopted 
appropriate formal Terms of Reference, as per its Audit 
Committee Charter. it has regulated its affairs in compliance 
with this Charter in the discharging of its responsibilities as 
contained therein.

Audit and Risk Committee Members and 
Attendance
The Audit and Risk Committee for the 2018/2019 financial 
year comprised the members detailed in the table below. Four 
meetings were scheduled and held. An additional two special 
meetings were also held during the period under review.

Risk Management
As part of ongoing efforts to further improve governance, the 
Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the Risk Management 
Strategy that was developed by the Provincial internal Audit 
Unit. The Committee made recommendations regarding the 
implementation of the strategy.

The Committee is of the opinion that once the risk 
management process has been rolled out, it will significantly 
improve the strategic management and corporate governance 
of the Entity. TKZN believes that strategy, risk performance 
and sustainable service delivery are inseparable.

Proper risk management will ensure that best practice is 
implemented and that the core function of the Entity remains 
the focal point, in so doing, contributing enormously to 
service delivery. The Audit and Risk Committee will constantly 
monitor the rollout of risk management in order to ensure 
that the process reaches maturity within a reasonable time.

Internal Audit
internal Audit operated within an annual and three-year 
rolling plan approved by the Audit and Risk Committee. The 
audit coverage included review of the following:
• Annual Financial Statements for year ended March 2019
• interim Financial Statements for the period ended 

September 2018
• Performance information for financial year under review 

was presented the anomalies noted was subsequently 
corrected 

SCM matters were presented to the committee and the 
investigations on such items were noted.  investigations 
were conducted and resolutions were taken accordingly. The 
results of these audits were presented to management for 
response and also presented to the Audit and Risk Committee 
for final review.

Based on the reports of the internal Auditors, the Audit and 
Risk Committee is satisfied that internal controls are in place 
and are working effectively.

The Effectiveness of Internal Controls
The system of controls is designed to provide cost-effective 
assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities and 
working capital are effectively managed in line with the Public 
Finance Management Act and King ill/iV Report on Corporate 
Governance requirements. internal audit provides for the 
Audit and Risk Committee and management processes, as 
well as the identification of corrective action and suggested 
enhancements of controls and processes.

Report of the Audit and Risk Committee  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

The TKZN Audit and Risk Committee report is presented below: 
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Governance Processes and Accountability
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has adopted 
appropriate formal Terms of Reference as its Charter, has 
regulated its affairs in compliance with this Audit Committee 
Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as 
contained therein. The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed 
quarterly reports and is satisfied that the controls are in place 
to monitor spending patterns. The quarterly reports were 
submitted to the Board and EDTEA in terms of the Transfer 
Funding Agreement.

Evaluation of Annual Financial 
Statements 
The Audit and Risk Committee has:
Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial 
Statements to be included in the annual report with the 
Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority, and reviewed 
significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

Appreciation
Our sincere appreciation and thanks are extended to all those 
who attended TKZN meetings for their contribution and to 
the Chief Executive Officer and management as a whole for 
their support and useful interaction during the year under 
review. The Audit and Risk Committee concurs with and 
accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the Annual 
Financial Statements and is of the opinion that the audited 
Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together 
with the report of the Auditor-General.

Signed on behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee:  
Mr P. Ngcobo 
Chairperson

Date: 23 July 2019 
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
PART D: 
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Human Resources Report

The Auditor-General of South Africa currently performs the necessary audit procedures on 
the performance information to provide limited assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. 

Introduction
Overview of HR matters
The role of human resource management and administration 
is to plan, develop, and administer policies and programmes 
designed to make expeditious use of an organisation’s HR, 
thus effective utilisation of sizable HR, desirable working 
relationships among all members of an organisation, and 
maximum individual development.

The set priorities for the year were talent acquisition, 
human capital development, talent retention, performance 
management, employee relations, employee wellness, 
compliance and reporting. Through the Situational 
Analysis process, TKZN has successfully analysed the 
current organisational processes and objectives and, 
identified the focus areas for future improvement and 
the areas of misalignment stipulated in the situational 
analysis implementation report. in the year under review, 
the Management Development Programme, Leadership 
Coaching and HRiS online review were implemented as per 
the Situational Analysis outcomes.

Talent Acquisition
Talent acquisition is an overall approach of sourcing 
highly talented individuals to maximise potential through 
training with the purpose of retaining talent as a return on 
investment for the Organisation. Recruitment is done by way 
of advertising, security betting, targeted selection interviews 
and competency assessments.

Learning and Development
internal employees are given opportunities to develop their 

skills, thus improving the effectiveness of the  Organisation 
and empowering individuals to perform optimally. Training is 
delivered through a focused approach in compliance with the 
Skills Development Act, aligned to the Sector requirements. 
individual development plans are based on functional, 
individual growth and compliance in line with observation 
enhancement.

The Organisation also contributes to the development of 
unemployed youth through the internship programme, 
which focuses on training programmes through coaching 
and mentoring.

Talent Retention
Talent retention is achieved through various strategies such 
as the Organisation’s Pay Progression Policy; Long Service 
Recognition, which includes a service allowance. investing 
in employees enables the Organization to retain talent and 
intellectual property.

Performance Management
TKZN’s Performance Management Policy empowers 
employees to have greater input to their personal career 
progression and enables the Organisation to better identify, 
recognise, and reward individuals based on an agreed set 
criteria. The Entity further recognises that managing and 
reviewing employee performance and fostering employee 
development are critical factors in achieving overall success. 

Reward and Recognition
The Entity has adopted the sector benchmarking with regard 
to market related remuneration. The Entity’s pay structure 
includes the important benefits of disability and life cover.
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Employee Relations
The Organisation adopts an inclusive engagement approach 
that facilitates the inclusion of Social Partners. Human 
Resources ensures full compliance with employment 
regulations and administers engagements with the 
employees through the recognised structures. Policy 
formulation is paramount for the smooth articulation and 
expectation as well as elimination of risks attached thereof. 
The Human Resources Unit provides guidance and carries out 
an advisory oversight role.

Wellness Programmes
The Organisation subscribes to a comprehensive Wellness 
Programme that a significantly contributes to improving 
productivity. The Organisation is cognisant that wellness 
promotes optimal performance, reduction in work related ill-
health and improves employee relations. TKZN takes the issue 
of a healthy lifestyle of employees as a very central element; it 
believes in the notion of a well-balanced lifestyle.

Compliance
The Organisation subscribes to the full observation and 
adherence to the labour regulations of the country while 
adhering to governance and risk compliance.

Reporting
Integrated Data, Industry Competitive 
Information
The Organisation keeps abreast of corporate best practice 
by maintaining a competitive edge with reference to global 
standards and the ever-changing business world. Analysing 
meaningful information is vital to allow management to 
make viable and meaningful decisions. Human resources 
is a strategic enabler for the adaptation to changes and the 
related adjustments, contributing to the evolving business 
environment and business growth.

Future HR Plans/Goals
The ongoing project and future plans include the 
incorporation of the KZN Film Commission into TKZN. This 
encompasses various dimensions and expertise that require 
robust engagements and consultations to manage this 
change.
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HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

Programme  Total Expenditure 
for the Programme 

(R’000) 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel Exp. as 
a % of Total Exp. 

(R’000)

No. of Employees Average  Personnel 
Cost per Employee 

(R’000)

CEO’s Office  9 001  4 952 55%  5  990 

Marketing  61 039  5 069 8%  7  724 

Tourism information Services  17 210  12 916 75%  20  646 

Convention Bureau  14 266  2 419 17%  2  1 210 

Corporate Services  24 690  11 685 47%  16  730 

PR & Communications  36 485  2 603 7%  3  868 

Tourism Development  5 375  3 488 65%  5  698 

 168 066  43 132 58  5 865

PERSONNEL COST BY SALARY BAND

Level  Personnel  
Expenditure 

(R’000)

% of Personnel Exp. to 
Total Personnel Cost 

(R’000)

No. of Employees Average Personnel 
Cost per Employee

(R’000)

Top management  4 374 10%  2  2 187 

Senior management  3 482 8%  5  696 

Professional qualified  11 509 27%  11  1 046 

Skilled  20 481 47%  34  602 

Semi-skilled  2 864 7%  4  716 

Unskilled  422 1%  2  211 

Total  43 132 100%  58  5 459

PERFORMANCE  REWARDS

Level  Performance  Rewards  Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000) 

% of Performance 
Rewards to Total 

Personnel Cost (R’000)

Top management  Nil  4 374 0%

Senior management  3 482 0%

Professional qualified  11 509 0%

Skilled  20 481 0%

Semi-skilled  2 864 0%

Unskilled  422 0%

Total  43 132 0%
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Activity
 Personnel 

Expenditure 
(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Training Expenditure 
as a % of Personnel 

Cost

No. of Employees 
Trained

Avg. Training Cost  
per Employee 

(R’000)

Training (bursaries and 
informal training)

43 132 808 1.87% 63 12

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

Level
No. of Employees  

2018/2019
No. of Approved Posts  

2018/2019
No of Vacancies 

2018/2019
% of Vacancies

Top Management 2 3 1 33

Senior Management 5 6 1 17

Professional qualified 11 14 3 21

Skilled 34 41 7 17

Semi-skilled 4 4 0 0

Unskilled 2 2 0 0

Total 58 70 12 17

 

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Salary Band
 Employment at 

Beginning of the Period 
Appointments Terminations

Employment at the End of the 
Period

Top management 3 1 2 2

Senior management 1 4 0 5

Professional qualified 8 3 Nil 11

Skilled 35 3 2 34

Semi-skilled 4 Nil Nil 4

Unskilled 2 Nil Nil 2

Total 53 11 4 58 
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REASONS FOR STAFF LEAVING

Reason Number % of Total no. of Staff Leaving

Death - -

Resignation 1 1.7%

Dismissal 2 3.44%

Retirement 1 1.7%

ill health - -

Expiry of contract 1 1.7%

Other 0 -

Total 5 8%
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Index
The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the provincial legislature:

PAGE

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019 82

Statement of Financial Performance 83

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 84

Cash Flow Statement 85

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 86

Accounting Policies 87 - 95

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 96 - 113

GRAP                                                    Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

IPSAS                                                    International Public Sector Accounting Standards 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 82 to 113, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved 
by the accounting authority and were signed on its behalf by:

Mr S L Madlala Ms P Makwakwa
Chairperson Acting Chief Executive Officer
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Report by the Accounting Authority to the Executive 
Authority and KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature of 
the Republic of South Africa.

Review of activities

Main business and operations
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority trading as Tourism 
KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN), is a schedule 3C entity that is a 
statutory body responsible for the development, marketing 
and promotion of tourism in KwaZulu-Natal. It was established 
in 1997 in accordance with the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act No 
11 of 1996, as amended by Act No2 of 2002. The Authority 
reports to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature, through 
the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental Affairs.

The Entity is engaged in and operates principally in South 
Africa. For the financial year 2018/2019, the Entity received a 
discretional grant of R124 017 000 (2017/18: R116 980 000) 
from the Provincial Department of Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs and R2 506 000 (2017/18: 
R2 407 000) from eThekwini Municipality towards the 
Convention Bureau.

The operating results and state of affairs of the Entity are 
fully set out in the attached AFS. Net deficit of the Entity was  
R6 023 000 (2018: surplus R8 080 000).

The Committees of the Board continued to play their oversight 
roles, and they are as follows:
• Audit and Risk Committee
• Human Resources and Compensation Committee
• Marketing and Tourism Development Committee
• Durban KZN Convention Bureau Committee
• Chairperson’s Committee

The terms for Board committees remained the same 
throughout the year under review and are detailed in the 
corporate governance report.

Bankers
The Entity’s bankers for the period under review were:
• First National Bank

Auditors
The Auditor-General of South Africa is the Entity’s external  
auditor and will continue in office for the next financial period.

HTB Consulting were internal auditors of the Entity for the 
period under review. Provincial treasury also assisted with the 
interim financial review.

Attorneys
During the period under review, the Entity used the following 
attorneys:
• J.V. Pretorius & Associate
• Phumulani  Ngubane & Associates
• Mdu Nkomo & Company
• KB Associates Inc.  Attorneys
• Elaine Bisesar & Co. Attorneys
• Leigh-anne Moodley Attorneys 
• Hajra Patel Inc
• Venns Attorneys
• Tomlinson Mnguni James
• Woodhead Bigby & Irving
• Buthelezi Mtshali Mzulwini
• Edward Norton Rose
• Poswa Incorporated

The AFS, set out on pages 82 to 113, which have been 
prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 
accounting authority on 31 May 2019 and were signed on its 
behalf by:

Mr S.L. Madlala                                                Ms P. Makwakwa
Chairperson of the Board                           Acting CEO 

Accounting Authority’s Report
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Report on the audit of the financial 
statements
Opinion
1. I have audited the financial statements of the KwaZulu-

Natal Tourism Authority set out on pages 82 to 113, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
31 March 2019, the statement of financial performance, 
statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement 
and statement of comparison of budget and actual 
amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Kwazulu-Natal Tourism Authority as at 31 March 2019, 
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with South African Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA 
Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No.1 
of 1999) (PFMA).

Basis for opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International 

Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the auditor-
general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of this auditor’s report. 

4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with 
sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (IESBA) as well as the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have 
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the IESBA codes.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority 
for the financial statements
6. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting 

authority is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance 

with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements 
of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the 
accounting authority determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting 
authority is responsible for assessing the KwaZulu-
Natal Tourism Authority’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating 
to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the appropriate governance 
structure either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor-General’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements
8. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or 
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

9. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements is included in the annexure to 
this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual 
performance report
Introduction and scope
10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South 

Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general 
notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to 
report material findings on the reported performance 
information against predetermined objectives for 
selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report. I performed procedures to identify 
findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

Report of the Auditor-General to KwaZulu-Natal Legislature on 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
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services and Marketing. As management subsequently 
corrected the misstatements, I did not raise any material 
findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information. 

Report on the audit of compliance with 
legislation
Introduction and scope
17. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued 

in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 
findings on the compliance of the entity with specific 
matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to 
identify findings but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance. 

18. The material findings on compliance with specific 
matters in key legislations are as follows: 

Annual financial statements

19. The annual financial statements submitted for auditing 
were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed 
financial reporting framework and supported by full 
and proper records, as required by section 55(1)(a) and 
(b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of liabilities, 
revenue, expenditure and disclosure items identified 
by the auditors in the submitted financial statements 
were corrected and the supporting records provided 
subsequently, resulting in the financial statements 
receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Expenditure management 

20. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent 
irregular expenditure amounting to R22,38 million as 
disclosed in note 27 to the annual financial statements, 
as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. The 
majority of the irregular expenditure disclosed in the 
financial statements was caused by non-compliance with 
Supply Chain Management (SCM) regulations relating to 
contract management.

Procurement and contract management

21. Some of the goods and services of a transaction value 
above R500 000 were procured without inviting 
competitive bids and deviations were approved by 
the accounting officer but it was practical to invite 
competitive bids, as required by treasury regulations 
16A6.1 and 16A6.4. 

22. Some of the contracts were awarded to suppliers whose 

11. My procedures address the reported performance 
information, which must be based on the approved 
performance planning documents of the entity. I have 
not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness 
of the performance indicators/ measures included 
in the planning documents. My procedures also did 
not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to 
planned performance strategies and information in 
respect of future periods that may be included as part of 
the reported performance information. Accordingly, my 
findings do not extend to these matters. 

12. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information in accordance with the criteria 
developed from the performance management and 
reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, 
for the following selected programmes presented in 
the annual performance report of the entity for the year 
ended 31 March 2019:

Programmes

Pages in 
the Annual 

Performance 
Report

Programme 2 – Tourism Information 
Services

32-33

Programme 4 – Marketing 39-47

13. I performed procedures to determine whether the 
reported performance information was properly 
presented and whether performance was consistent 
with the approved performance planning documents. 
I performed further procedures to determine whether 
the indicators and related targets were measurable and 
relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported 
performance information to determine whether it was 
valid, accurate and complete.

14. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported performance information 
for these programmes.

Other matters
15. I draw attention to the matter below. 

Adjustment of material misstatements

16. I identified material misstatements in the annual 
performance report submitted for auditing. These 
material misstatements were on the reported 
performance information of Tourism information 
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Internal control deficiencies
30. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 

financial statements, reported performance information 
and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 
objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. 
The matters reported below are limited to the significant 
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings 
on compliance with legislation included in this report.

31. Leadership did not exercise adequate oversight over 
compliance with laws and regulations.

32. Non-compliance with key legislation could have been 
prevented, had management updated and regularly 
monitored adherence to their compliance checklists.

Other reports
33. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted 

by various parties that had, or could have, an impact on 
the matters reported in the entity’s financial statements, 
reported performance information, compliance with 
applicable legislation and other related matters. These 
reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial 
statements or my findings on the reported performance 
information or compliance with legislation.

34. An independent consultant investigated an allegation 
of financial misconduct and SCM irregularities at the 
request of the entity, which covered the period 10 May 
2017 to 30 April 2018. The investigation concluded on 19 
June 2019 and resulted in criminal proceedings against 
two terminated employees. These proceedings were in 
progress at the date of this auditor’s report.

 

Pietermaritzburg
31 July 2019
 
 

tax matters had not been declared by the South African 
Revenue Services to be in order as required by treasury 
regulation 16A9.1(d). Similar non-compliance was also 
reported in the prior year.

23. Some of the bid documentation for procurement 
commodities designated for local content and 
production, did not stipulate the minimum threshold 
for local production and content as required by the 2017 
preferential procurement regulation 8(2). Similar non-
compliance was also reported in the prior year. 

24. Some of the contracts were extended or modified without 
the approval of a properly delegated official as required 
by section 44 of the PFMA and treasury regulations 8.1 
and 8.2. Similar non-compliance was also reported in the 
prior year.

Other information
25. The accounting authority is responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report. The other 
information does not include the financial statements, 
the auditor’s report and those selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report that have 
been specifically reported in this auditor’s report. 

26. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on 
the reported performance information and compliance 
with legislation do not cover the other information and I 
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

27. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements and the selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report, or my 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. 

28. If based on the work performed, I conclude that there is 
a material misstatement in this other information, I am 
required to report that fact.

29. I have nothing to report in this regard.
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1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout my audit of the financial 
statements, and the procedures performed on reported 
performance information for selected programmes and 
on the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected 
subject matters.

Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the 

financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, 
I also: 
• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 

of the financial statements whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the board of 
directors, which constitutes the accounting authority.

• conclude on the appropriateness of the board of 
directors, which constitutes the accounting authority’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
the preparation of the financial statements. I also 

Annexure: Auditor-General’s Responsibility for the Audit

conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in 
my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements about the material uncertainty 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the 
opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions 
are based on the information available to me at the 
date of this auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause an entity to cease continuing as 
a going concern.

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Communication with those charged with 
governance
3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify 
during my audit. 

4. I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and communicate all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to have 
a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 March 2019 

Note(s) 2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000

Assets

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 13 5 520 3 685

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 14 6 916 2 608

Cash and cash equivalents 15 53 707 31 008

66 143 37 301

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 11 3 197 3 792

Intangible assets 12 255 287

3 452 4 079

Total Assets 69 595 41 380

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Payables from exchange transactions 16 41 089 19 700

Payable from non-exchange transactions 16 13 206 357

54 295 20 057

Total Liabilities 54 295 20 057

Net Assets 15 300 21 323

Accumulated surplus 15 300 21 323
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Statement of Financial Performance

Note(s) 2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Other income 2 588 528

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Government grants (discretional) 2 126 523 119 387

Project Income - grants 20 35 131 4 307

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 161 654 123 694

Total revenue 2 162 242 124 222

Expenditure

CEO office 3 (9 001) (9 115)

Tourism Information Services 4 (17 210) (17 923)

Tourism Development 5 (5 375) (4 138)

Marketing Expenses 6 (61 039) (30 386)

Public Relations and communications 7 (36 485) (20 549)

Convention Bureau 8 (14 266) (12 475)

Corporate Services 9 (24 690) (21 512)

Loss on disposal of assets (199) (44)

Total expenditure (168 265) (116 142)

(Deficit) surplus for the year (6 023) 8 080
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Accumulated 
surplus

Total net 
assets

R ‘000 R ‘000

Balance at 01 April 2017 13 243 13 243

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 8 080 8 080

Total changes 8 080 8 080

Balance at 01 April 2018 21 323 21 323

Changes in net assets

(Deficit) for the year (6 023) (6 023)

Total changes (6 023) (6 023)

Balance at 31 March 2019 15 300 15 300
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Cash Flow Statement

 Note(s) 2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Government grants received 126 523 119 387

Other  income 578 405

Cash receipts from debtors 1 903 20 749

Cash receipts for projects 48 050 -

177 054 140 541

Payments

Employee costs (42 229) (41 016) 

Suppliers                                                                                                                                                        (111 341) (74 911)

Finance costs (2)                    (2)

(153 572) (115 929)

Net cash flows from operating activities 18 23 482 24 612

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11 (765) (433) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2&11 8

Purchase of intangible assets 12 (26) (76)

Net cash flows from investing activities (783) (509)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 22 699 24 103

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 31 008 6 905

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 53 707 31 008



ANNUAL REPORT 2018/201986

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2019

K W A Z U L U - N A T A L  T O U R I S M  A U T H O R I T Y

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
as at 31 March 2019 

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved 
Budget

Adjustments Final 
Budget

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable

basis

Difference 
between 

final budget 
and actual

R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Other income 317 13 330 588 258

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 124 017 - 124 017 124 017 -

City of Ethekwini: CVB contribution 3 039 (533) 2 506 2 506 -

Project Income - 49 948 49 948 35 131 (14 817)

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 127 056 49 415 176 471 161 654 (14 817)

Total revenue 127 373 49 428 176 801 162 242 (14 559)

Expenditure

CEO office (10 204) 1 176 (9 028) (9 001) 27

Tourism Information Services (22 848) (1 837) (24 685) (17 210) 7 475

Tourism Development (7 323) (9 188) (16 511) (5 375) 11 136

Marketing Expenses (39 140) (15 985) (55 125) (61 039) (5 914)

Public Relations and communications (11 293) (18 674) (29 967) (36 485) (6 518)

Convention Bureau (13 015) (5750) (18 765) (14 266) 4 499

Corporate Services (23 550) 830 (22 720) (24 690) (1 970)

Total expenditure (127 373) (49 428) (176 801) (168 066) 8 735

Operating deficit - - - (5 824) (5 824)

Loss on disposal of assets - - - (199) (199)

Surplus/(Deficit) - - - (6 023) (6 023)

Actual Amount on Comparable Basis as 
Presented in the Budget and Actual 

Comparative Statement - - - (6 023) (6 023)

Reconciliation of net surplus on accrual to 

cash flow statement

Basis difference

Operating 29 505

Investing (783)

Actual Amount in the cash flow statement 22 699
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1. Presentation of Annual Financial 
Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the 
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on 
an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, 
unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South 
African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have 
been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 
financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous 
period.

1.1   Presentation currency
These annual financial statements are presented in South 
African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.2   Going concern assumption
These annual financial statements have been prepared based 
on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate 
as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. The 
pending rationalisation process is not expected to affect the 
preparation of financial statements as a going concern, as its 
expected that the entity will incorporate the KwaZulu-Natal 
Film Commission in its operations.

1.3   Materiality
Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if 
they could, individually or collectively, influence the decisions 
or assessments of users made on the basis of the financial 
statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of 
the omission or misstatement judged in the surrounding 
circumstances. The nature or size of the information item, or a 
combination of both, could be the determining factor.

Assessing whether an omission or misstatement could 
influence decisions of users, and so be material, requires 
consideration of the characteristics of those users. The 
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements states that users are assumed to have a reasonable 
knowledge of government, its activities, accounting and 
a willingness to study the information with reasonable 
diligence. Therefore, the assessment takes into account how 
users with such attributes could reasonably be expected to 
be influenced in making and evaluating decisions.

1.4   Classification of expenses
An entity shall present an analysis of expenses using a 
classification based on either the nature of expenses or their 
function within the entity, whichever provides information 
that is reliable and more relevant.

The organisation has opted to classify its expenses based on a 
function basis (Programme).

1.5   Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current 
assets  that are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative 
purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one 
period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset when:
 » it is probable that future economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; 
and

 » the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the 
purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset 
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct 
an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 

Accounting Policies
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subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a 
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an 
item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management.

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing 
equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of 
property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the 
straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 
estimated residual value.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment 
have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation
method

Average
useful life

Computer hardware Straight line 3 years

Office equipment

Photographic Straight line 6 years

Dictaphones Straight line 3 years

Perforating equipment Straight line 6 years

Television Straight line 6 years

Surveyors equipment Straight line 5 years

Refrigeration Straight line 5 years

Office furniture Straight line 6 years

Office fittings and alterations Straight line 6 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a 
systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 
cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item 
is depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which 
the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are 
expected to be consumed by the entity. The depreciation 
method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each 
reporting date and, if there has been a significant change in 
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the 
method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such 
a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting 
estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in 
surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount 
of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised 
when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further 
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use 
of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or 
deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising 
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.6   Intangible assets
An asset is identifiable if it either:
 » is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided 

from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 
exchanged, either individually or together with a related 
contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of 
whether the entity intends to do so; or

 » arises from binding arrangements (including rights 
from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are 
transferable or separable from the entity or from other 
rights and obligations.
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An intangible asset is recognised when:
 » it is probable that the expected future economic benefits 

or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the entity; and

 » the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition 
is measured at its fair value as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and any impairment losses.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for 
intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite 
useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for 
impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised 
over its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible 
assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as 
follows:

Item Depreciation 
method

Average useful life

Computer
software

Straight line 2 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
 » on disposal; or
 » when no future economic benefits or service potential are 

expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible 
assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is 
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires 
otherwise on a sale and leaseback).

1.7   Impairment
At each reporting date, the entity reviews the carrying 
amounts of it’s tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less 
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets is 
reduced to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are immediately recognised as an expense, 
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued under 
another standard, in which the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation decrease under the standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment  been recognised for the asset 
in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised as 
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
revalued amount under the standard, in which the reversal of 
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under 
that other standard.

1.8   Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, short term 
investments with financial institutions and the amount 
deposited with financial institutions as part of the entity’s 
current account.

Funds under administration in respect of projects are 
deposited with financial institutions and are accounted as 
such. Cash and cash equivalents for the entity coming from 
other income,comes from interest.

1.9   Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a 
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a 
residual interest of another entity.
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The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is 
the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, 
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount 
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly 
or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment 
or uncollectibility.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised 
financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement 
of financial position.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
 » cash;
 » a residual interest of another entity; or
 » a contractual right to:
 » receive cash or another financial asset from another 

entity; or
 » exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with 

another entity under conditions that are potentially 
favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual 
obligation to:
 » deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
 » exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under 

conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event 
of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another 
financial asset.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to 
make a payment when contractually due.

Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets 
(classes and category) as reflected on the face of the 
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Other receivables Financial asset measured at 
amortised cost

Other financial asset Financial asset measured at fair 
value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities 
(classes and category) as reflected on the face of the 
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Loan Financial liability measured at 
amortised cost

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in 
its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date 
accounting.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial 
liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities 
after initial recognition using the following categories:
 » Financial instruments at fair value.
 » Financial instruments at amortised cost.
 » Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are 
subject to an impairment review.

Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component 
that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense 
in surplus or deficit.

Accounting Policies
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1.10 Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities
The entity is a VAT vendor as defined in terms of the Vat  Act.

Tax expenses
The entity operates on funds derived from Government 
grants. In terms of a directive issued by South African Revenue
Service ,the receipts and accruals of the KwaZulu-Natal 
Tourism Authority are exempt from Income tax.

1.11 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially 
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease 
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
asset or liability.

1.12 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by 
an entity in exchange for service rendered by employee. 
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a 
result of either:
 » an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s 

employment before the normal retirement date; or
 » an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy 

in exchange for those benefits.
Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits 
(other than post-employment benefits and termination 
benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not 
conditional on future employment.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other 
than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity 
during a reporting period, the entity recognise the 
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits 
expected to be paid in exchange for that service:
 » as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any 

amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds 
the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity 
recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the 
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a 
reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

 » as an expense, unless another Standard requires or 
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an 
asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised 
as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures 
the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences 
as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a 
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the 
reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and 
performance related payments when the entity has a present 
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a 
result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation 
can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has 
no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit 
plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not 
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to 
employee service in the current and prior periods.

Accounting Policies



ANNUAL REPORT 2018/201992

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2019

K W A Z U L U - N A T A L  T O U R I S M  A U T H O R I T Y

When an employee has rendered service to the entity 
during a reporting period, the entity recognise the 
contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in 
exchange for that service:
 » as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any 

contribution already paid. If the contribution already 
paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the 
reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset 
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will 
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a 
cash refund; and

 » as an expense, unless another Standard requires or 
permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an 
asset.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the 
expenditure expected to be required to settle the present 
obligation at the reporting date.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed 
if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 
required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision 
increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the 
provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not 
recognised for future operating deficits.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present 
obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised 
and measured as a provision.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities 
recognised in entity combinations that are recognised 
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:
 » the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
 » the amount initially recognised less cumulative 

amortisation.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 
recognised.

1.14 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has 
committed itself to future transactions that will normally 
result in the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised 
contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a 
fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial 
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
 » Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable 

at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or 
building maintenance services); and

 » Contracts should relate to something other than the 
routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore 
salary commitments relating to employment contracts or 
social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential during the reporting period when those inflows 
result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating 
to contributions from owners.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the 
following conditions have been satisfied:
 » the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant 

risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

Accounting Policies
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 » the entity retains neither continuing managerial 
involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

 » the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 » it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential 

associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
 » and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 

transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering 
of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The 
outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all 
the following conditions are satisfied:
 » the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 » it is probable that the economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
entity;

 » the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting 
date can be measured reliably; and

 » the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to 
complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by a number of acts over a 
specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line 
basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence 
that some other method better represents the stage of 
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than 
any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until 
the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the 
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue 
is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised 
that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of 
completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage 
of completion is determined by the proportion that costs 
incurred to date bear to the total estimated costs of the 
transaction.
 
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets 
yielding interest or similar distributions is recognised 
when:
 » It is probable that the economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
entity, and

 » The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective 
interest rate method.

1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions where 
the entity receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential during the reporting period when those inflows 
result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating 
to contributions from owners.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 

willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates.

Accounting Policies
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Government grants
Government grants are recognised as revenue when:
 » it is probable that the economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
entity,

 » the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, and
 » to the extent that there has been compliance with any 

restrictions associated with the grant.

The entity assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow 
of future economic benefits or service potential on the basis of 
the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of 
government to another are subject to the availability of funds.

Discretional government grants
Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is 
probable that the economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. An 
announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants 
may be available for qualifying entities in accordance with an 
agreed programme may not be sufficient evidence of the 
probability of the flow. Revenue is then only recognised once 
evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available.

Non-discretional government grants
Restrictions on government grants may result in such revenue 
being recognised on a time proportion basis. Where there 
is no restriction on the period, such revenue is recognised 
on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, whichever is 
earlier.

When government remit grants on a re-imbursement basis, 
revenue is recognised when the qualifying expense has been 
incurred and to the extent that any other restrictions have 
been complied with.

1.17 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial 
recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the spot selling exchange rate between the 

functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of 
the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary 
items or on translating monetary items at rates different from 
those at which they were translated on initial recognition 
during the period or in previous annual financial statements 
are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which they 
arise.

1.18 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified 
to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in 
vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. 
The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature 
of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently 
accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial 
performance.

1.20 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is 
expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred 
in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a 
requirement of any applicable legislation, including -
a. this Act; or
b. the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or 

any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
c. any provincial legislation providing for procurement 

procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was 
issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires 
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Accounting Policies
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Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during 
the current financial year and for which condonement is 
being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular 
expenditure register. No further action is required with the 
exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during 
the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded 
appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability 
for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, 
a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in 
law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover 
the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not 
possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may 
write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such 
in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular 
expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If 
the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no 
person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must 
remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be 
disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and 
updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.21 Budget information

Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form 
of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), 
which is given effect through authorising legislation, 
appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide 
information on whether resources were obtained and used in 
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and 
presented by programmes linked to performance outcome 
objectives. The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 
2018/04/01 to 2019/03/31.

The annual financial statements and the budget are not on the 
same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between 
the statement of financial performance and the budget have 
been included in the annual financial statements.
Comparative information is not required.

1.22 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to 
control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant 
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that 
is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

1.22 Related parties (continued)

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or 
obligations between the reporting entity and a related party, 
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial 
and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control 
over those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, 
including those charged with the governance of the entity 
in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are 
required to perform such functions.

Accounting Policies
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2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

2. Revenue 

Grant from EDTEA 124 017 116 980

City of Ethekwini municipality contribution towards  Convention bureau 2 506 2 407

Other income 588 528

Project income 35 131 4 307

162 242 124 222

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as follows:

Other income 588 528

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:

Transfer revenue

Government grants 126 523 119 387

Project Income 35 131 4 307

161 654 123 694

3. CEO's Office

Advertising - 5

Consultants and professional fees 235 50

Postage and courier - 4

Travel and accommodation costs 562 614

Printing and stationery 277 498

Workshop 243 62

Subscriptions 40 39

Directors remunerations 2 515 1 968

Operating expenses 177 232

Employee costs 4 952 5 643

9 001 9 115

4. Tourism Information Services

Consultants and professional fees 378 340

Rental 1 279 1 355

Postage and courier 311 749

Travel and accommodation costs 312 300

Printing and stationery 5 30

Operating expenses 1 985 2 280

Workshops 20 8

Subscriptions 4 127

Employee costs 12 916 12 734

17 210 17 923
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

5. Tourism Development

Advertising - 121

Consultants and professional fees 667 786

Postage and courier 3 -

Travel and accommodation costs 739 862

Project Expense 122 -

Venues and facilities - 525

Workshops 76 113

Operating expenses 210 32

Subscriptions 70 -

Employee costs 3 488 1 699

5 375 4 138

6. Marketing Expenses

Advertising 35 873 21 716

Project expense 15 529 -

Postage and courier 1 -

Travel and accommodation costs 4 193 2 733

Printing and stationery - 13

Subscriptions - 53

Operating expenses 172 106

Venues and Facilities 20 -

Workshops 182 237

Sponsorships - 100

Employee costs 5 069 5 428

61 039 30 386

7. Public Relations and Communications

Advertising 17 810 9 830

Postage and courier 1 130

Project expenses 13 022 2 607

Travel and accommodation costs 1 412 1 687

Printing and stationery 2 276

Workshops 1 029 396

Communications 58 57

Subscriptions 108 93

Sponsorships 440 2 248

Employee costs 2 603 3 225

36 485 20 549
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

8. Convention Bureau

Advertising 173 306

Travel and accommodation 1 522 1 025

Workshops 883 410

Sponsorships 4 492 4 873

Printing and stationery 9 88

Operating expenses 414 459

Subscriptions 6 251

Employee costs 2 419 3 363

Project expenses 4 348 1 700

14 266 12 475

9. Corporate Services

Advertising 201 141

Postage and Courier 30 8

Employee wellness 202 157

Bank charges 79 75

Travel and accommodation costs 80 78

Printing and stationery 504 571

Training and development 808 772

Audit fees 1 316 941

Foreign exchange loss 146 1

General and administrative expenses 1 934 2 403

Provision for doubtful debt 116 137

Finance costs 2 2

Lease rentals on operating lease 5 650 4 856

Consultants and professional fees 726 383

Depreciation and amortisation 1 211 1 213

Employee costs 11 685 9 774

24 690 21 512
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2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

10.   Employee Costs

The employee costs for the organisation are not separately disclosed on the face of statement of 
financial performance, and are individually disclosed in the respective departments. Below is a 
disclosure for the entire organisation:

Employee costs for the respective departments

The CEO’s office 4 952 5 643

Tourism Information Services 12 916 12 734

Tourism development 3 488 1 699

Marketing 5 069 5 428

Public relations and communications 2 603 3 225

Convention Bureau 2 419 3 363

Corporate services 11 685 9 774

43 132 41 866

Other long term benefits

Other long term benefits are employee benefits (other than post-retirement benefits) that 
are not due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which employees 
render related service. It is the entity’s policy that each employee will receive a R5 000 after 
10 consecutive years of employment, R7 500 after 15 consecutive years of employment  and  
R10 000 after 20 consecutive years of employment. Included in employee costs is an amount of 
R415 618  raised for long service  accrued liability(see note 16).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised and expensed when the payment is made.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Authority contributes to the Old Mutual Orion provident fund. 
Membership is compulsory for all employees. The fund is a defined contribution plan and the 
organisation contributes 15% of the pensionable remuneration. Included in the employee costs 
disclosed above, is an amount of paid over for provident fund. (see the table below for details)

Defined provident fund contribution plan 3 916 4 165

3 916 4 165

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
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11. Property, plant and equipment

2019 2018

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
Value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 

impairment

Carrying 
Value

Office furniture 2 466 (1 155) 1 311 2 480 (967) 1 513

Office equipment 328 (170) 158 347 (149) 198

IT equipment 4 045 (2 349) 1 696 3 956 (1 905) 2 051

Other property, plant and 
equipment

202 (170) 32 202 (172) 30

Total 7 041 (3 844) 3 197 6 985 (3 193) 3 792

Reconciliation of property, plant 
and equipment - 2019

Opening balance Additions Disposals Depreci
ation 

Total

Furniture and fixtures 1 513 263 (110) (354) 1 312

Office equipment 198 61 (23) (78) 158

IT  equipment 2 051 441 (74) (722) 1 696

Other property, plant and 
equipment

30 - - 2 32

3 792 765 (207) (1 152) 3 198

Re-assessment of useful lives for assets with zero carrying amount was done, it resulted in the depreciation reduction

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
Figures in Rand thousand
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11.   Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Reconciliation of property, plant 
and equipment - 2018

Opening 
balance 

Additions Disposals Depreci
ation 

Total

Furniture and fixtures 1 604 10 - (101) 1 513

Office equipment 157 78 (4) (33) 198

IT equipment 2 538 345 (36) (796) 2 051

Other property, plant and 
equipment

42 - (4) (8) 30

4 341 433 (44) (938) 3 792

12.   Intangible assets

2019 2018

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Computer software 1 718 (1 463) 255 1 728 (1 441) 287

Reconciliation of intangible 
assets - 2019

Opening 
balance

Additions Amortis-
ation

Total

Computer software 288 26 (59) 255

Reconciliation of intangible 
assets - 2018

Opening 
balance

Additions Amortis-
ation

Total

Computer software 485 76 (274) 287

 
  

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
Figures in Rand thousand
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
Figures in Rand thousand

2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

13.   Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors 391 1 134

VAT receivable 6 078 2 540

Staff debtors 38 39

Less: Provision for doubtful debt (1 215) (1 100) 

Prepayments 140 986

Rental deposit 88 86

5 520 3 685

The debt impairment disclosed in the statement of financial performance is the movement 
between the prior year balance and the current balance of the provision

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance 1 100 963

Provision for impairment 116 137

1 216 1 100

14.   Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Public sector partnerships and contribution 6 846 2 608

SARS: PAYE 70 -

6 916 2 608

Included in the public sector partnerships and contribution debt its two debtors namely EDTEA 
for the Vodacom Durban July and The City of Ethekwini Municipality for their 2018 contribution 
towards Indaba.

15.   Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 19 7

Bank balances 40 287 30 845

Short-term deposits 13 401 156

53 707 31 008
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Figures in Rand thousand

2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

16.   Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 249 864

Other payables 42 63

Accrued leave pay 3 506 2 858

Accrued bonus 261 239

Trade accruals 34 282 13 036

Operating lease liability 2 333 2 313

Long service accrual 416 327

41 089 19 700

Payables from non exchange transactions

Project funds 13 206 288

SARS: PAYE - 69

13 206 357

17.   Finance costs

Other interest paid 2 2

2 2

18.   Cash generated from operations

(Deficit) surplus (6 023) 8 080

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 1 211 1 213

Loss on disposal of assets 199 44

Changes in working capital:

Increase /(Decrease )in receivables from exchange transactions (1 835) 2 649

Increase/(Decrease ) in receivables from non-exchange transactions (4 308) 3 528

Increase/(Decrease)in Payables from exchange transactions 21 389 10 781

Increase /(Decrease)in Payables from non-exchange transactions 12 849 (1 683)

23 482 24 612
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
Figures in Rand thousand

2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

19.   Related Parties

Relationships

The Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental Controlling department

Affairs

Trade and Investment KZN Under the same control of EDTEA 

Tourism KZN Board Oversight responsibility

Executive Management Management of the Entity

Moses Kotane Institute Under the same control of EDTEA 

Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Under the same control of EDTEA 

Ithala Development Finance Corporation Under the same control of EDTEA 

KwaZulu-Natal Growth Fund Under the same control of EDTEA 

KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority Under the same control of EDTEA 

KwaZulu-Natal Film Commission Under the same control of EDTEA

KwaZulu-Natal Sharks Board Under the same control of EDTEA 

Dube Tradeport Under the same control of EDTEA

Related party transactions

Discretional Grants: EDTEA  124 017           116 980

Dube Tradeport contribution for the British Airways 
project

9 000 - 

Projects Grant: EDTEA 27 100 4 307

Ithala Development Finance Corporation  6 183                5 067

Key management remuneration (Executive's) 4 055                4 610

Directors remuneration (Board and committee members) 2 515                1 968

Trade and Investment KZN contribution for the British 
Airways project  

               1500 -

GRAP 20 is not yet effective, but the organisation has 
opted for an early  adoption of the standard.

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) 
regarding related parties

TIKZN-expense -                   260

TIKZN-Receivable -                 (253)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
Figures in Rand thousand

20.   Accumulated projects

Project Name FUNDER March   Funding Expenditure March

2018 2019

Tourism KZN Signage National Department of Tourism 117 - - 117

Metro Awards Events Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

171 - - 171

British Airways Dube Tradeport & Trade and 
Investment KZN

- 10 500 (10 446) 54

Nelson Mandela 
Capturesite

National Department of Tourism & 
Economic Development ,Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 10 450 (140) 10 310

Woza Durban New Years 
Picnic

Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 700 (700) -

Durban Summer Beach 
Festival

Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 1 500 (1 500) -

Fact Durban Rocks Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 1 500 (1 500) -

Newcastle Amcor Dam 
Festival

Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 700 (700) -

Mandeni Homecoming 
Festival

Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 700 (700) -

Durban Music Festival Economic Development ,Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 700 (700) -

Umngungundlovu Festive 
Music Experience

Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 700 (700) -

Last Dance Music Festival Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 1 500 (1 500) -

Umgababa Beach Festival Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 700 (700) -

Umthayi Marula Heritage 
Festival

Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 3 000 (3 000) -

African Forbes Leadership 
Summit

Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 5 000 (5 000) -

Drakensberg Extravaganza Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 2 000 (2 000) -

Vodacom Durban July Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

(2 606) - - (2 606)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
Figures in Rand thousand

Project Name FUNDER March   Funding Expenditure March

2018 2019

Billboards Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs

- 8 400 (5 845) 2 555

(2 318) 48 050 (35 131) 10 601

The organisation has received funding for different projects during the financial period, each project has its own contractual 
terms,and the organisation treats the funding as conditional grants. On receipt of the funds a liability is raised, only when the 
conditions of the contract have been met, then a project expense and project income are recognised. EDTEA still owes the 
organisation R2 606 985.81 for the amount spent for the Vodacom Durban July (Included in receivables).

The actual expenditure is the actual amount recognised as project income and project expense.

As at year end, the amount of work done on the British Airways Project has not yet been paid, but a project expense has been 
recognised since the financial statements are prepared on accrual basis.
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21.   Key Management remuneration 
(Executive Management)

2019 Basic Salary Post Short term Termination Total

termination benefits benefits

benefit

 (Prov fund)

Ms P Makwakwa 1 187 178 701 - 2 066

Mr F Nduna - Contract ended 732 105 58 174 1 069

Mr J Seymour - Resigned 278 33 86 123 520

Mr L Sidaki 682 - 23 - 705

2 879 316 868 297 4 360

2018 Basic Salary Other 
benefits 
received

Total

 

Mr N Khoza - Contract ended 473 91 564

Ms P Makwakwa 1 123 218 1 341

Mr F Nduna 1 297 4 1 301

Mr J Seymour 1 260 144 1 404

- - -

4 153 457 4 610

1. During the period under review Mr F. Nduna's contract as the entity's CFO came to an end in October 2018, and an Interim 
CFO Mr L Sidaki was appointed.

2. Mr J Seymour resigned as a Chief Convention Bureau.  
3. Ms  P Makwakwa has continued to act as the CEO of the organisation.
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22.   Directors emoluments

Non-executive

2019 Members' fees Other fees Total

Mr S L Madlala 537 1 538

Mr T Mzileni 238 6 244

Ms P Lebenya 419 - 419

Dr U Roopnarain 283 - 283

Prof T Nzama 236 20 256

Mr P Ngcobo 283 2 285

Mr M Jackson 163 - 163

Mr R Garach 43 2 45

Prof T Nzimakwe 230 - 230

Mr T Mokgobinyane 40 - 40

Mr M. Ngcobo 12 - 12

2 484 31 2 515

2018 Members’ fees Other fees Total

Mr S L Madlala 457 17 474

Mr T Mzileni 189 11 200

Ms P Lebenya 347 2 349

Dr U Roopnarain 187 1 188

Prof T Nzama 196 29 225

Mr P Ngcobo 205 6 211

Mr M Jackson 97 1 98

Mr S Adam 62 2 64

Mr S Naidoo 15 - 15

Mr M Mzimela 11 4 15

Ms Z Msimang 4 - 4

Mr R Garach 22 6 28

Prof T Nzimakwe 69 1 70

Mr T Mokgobinyane 26 1 27

1 887 81 1 968

1. Mr R Garach and Mr T Mokgobinyane were  independent members of the Audit and Risk committee,their term ended 31 
December 2018.

2. Mr M Ngcobo was appointed as a new independant member of Audit and Risk Committe on the 28 January 2019.
3. Mr T Delomoney, does  not receive remuneration, he is  an employee of the state.
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2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

23.   Commitments

Operating lease commitment

Already contracted for but not provided for

 » Up to 1 year 5 378 5 039

 » 2 to 5 years 17 011 18 851

22 389 23 890

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

 » Up to 1 year 18 092 1 532

 » 2 to 5 years 32 714 1 571

50 806 3 103

Not yet contracted for and authorised

 » Open orders 9 426 7 201

9 426 7 201

Total operational commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for 50 806 3 103

Not yet contracted for and authorised by members 9 426 7 201

60 232 10 304

Commitments disclosed are disclosed net of VAT.
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24.   Statement of comparison of budget and actual narrative area
1.  Project income
 » The variance is largely due to unspent project income for the Mandela Capture Site project of R10 310 000.
 » R 4 500 000 for British Airways that was part of the roll-over budget from previous years that was accounted for as a current 

adjustments,whereas in terms of accrual basis of accounting there were accounted in the 2017/2018 financial period.

2.   Tourism information services-underspending of R 7 475 000:
 » Social media tool was procured because of the risks raised by the TKZN legal provider.
 » The virtual reality project budgeted at R3 020 000 did not materialise.
 » Salary savings of R 1000 000

3.  Tourism development -underspending of R 11 136 000:
 » R 10 310 000 is a result of the Mandela capture site project which did not happen in the current period due to delay in 

processes to implement the project.

4.   Marketing -overspending of R 5 914 000:
 » British Airways accruals from contract partners.

5.   Public relations-overspending  of R6 518 000:
 » Overspending on the Vodacom Durban July expedition.
 » Media campaigns for the festive season.

6.  Convention Bureau-underspending of R 4 499 000:
 » Savings on vacant posts
 » Underspending on Bid Events support.

7.  Corporate services-Overspent of R1 970 000:
 » Non- cash items like depreciation, amortisation and provisons(Leave and bonus)

25.   Risk management

Liquidity risk
The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through 
an ongoing review of future commitments.

At 31 March 2019 Less than 1  
year

Between 1 
and 2 years 

Between 2 
and 5 years  

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 54 295 - - -

 

At 31 March 2018 Less than 1  
year

Between 1 
and 2 years 

Between 2 
and 5 years  

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 20 057 - - -
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25.   Risk management (continued) 

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, 
derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity 
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit 
standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread of SMME's and other 
government departments. Management evaluates credit risk 
relating to the debtors on an ongoing basis.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as 
follows:

Financial instruments 2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

Cash and cash equivalents 53 707 31 008

Receivables from exchange 5 520 3 685

Receivables from non-
exchange

6 916 2 608

66 143 37 301

Foreign exchange risk 
The entity does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations. The 
entity has certain foreign service providers whose invoices 
are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. Currency 
exposure arising from foreign service providers is managed 
,any losses or gains are realised through the statement of 
financial perfomance. The entity uses the selling spot rate 
for its foreign exchange transactions. Where contracting is 
done in a foreign currency,funds are ringfenced at the time of 
contracting  in the local currency and managed so as not to 
exceed the local currency rignfenced funds.

26.   Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

Opening balance 477 475

Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure

115 2

- -

592 477

27.   Irregular expenditure

2019 2018

R ‘000 R ‘000 

Restated opening balance 2 868 94

Add: Irregular Expenditure - 
current year

19 319 2 774

Add: Amount relating to 
prior year identified this 
year

195 -

22 382 2 868

The irregular expenditure for 2018/2019 relates to contracts 
that had expired. The entity experienced difficulty in 
appointing new service providers through the Supply Chain 
process due to the rationalisation process, TKZN could no 
longer appoint a service provider for a period longer than 12 
months.

28.   New standards and interpretations

28.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted 
in the current year
In the current year, the entity has adopted the following 
standards and interpretations that are effective for the current 
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:
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28.   New standards and interpretations (continued)

Standard/ Interpretation Effective date:
Years 
beginning on 
or after

Expected impact

 » IGRAP 19: Liabilities to Pay Levies 01 April 2019 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 12 (as amended 2016): Inventories 01 April 2018 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 17 (as amended 2016): Property, Plant and Equipment 01 April 2018 The impact of the amendments is not 
material

 » GRAP 27 (as amended 2016): Agriculture 01 April 2018 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 31 (as amended 2016): Intangible Assets 01 April 2018 The impact of the amendments is not 
material

 » GRAP 103 (as amended 2016): Heritage Assets 01 April 2018 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » Directive 12: The Selection of an Appropriate Reporting 
Framework by Public Entities

 
28.2 Standards and Interpretations early adopted

The entity has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:

Standard/ Interpretation Effective date:
Years 
beginning on 
or after

Expected impact

 » GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April 2019
The impact of the amendments is not 
material

28.3 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the 
entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2019 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation Effective date:
Years 
beginning on 
or after

Expected impact

 » GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statements 01 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » Guideline: Guideline on the Application of Materiality to 
Financial Statements

 » GRAP 104 (revised): Financial Instruments 01 April 2090 Unlikely there will be a material impact
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28.4 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods 
beginning on or after 01 April 2019 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation Effective date:
Years beginning 
on or after

Expected impact

 » GRAP 36: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 01 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements 01 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 38: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 01 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 6 (as revised 2010): Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements

01 April 2019 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities 
under common control

01 April 2019 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 106 (as amended 2016): Transfers of functions 
between entities not under common control

01 April 2019 Unlikely there will be a material impact

 » GRAP 107: Mergers 01 April 2019 Unlikely there will be a material impact

29.   Going concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

In the financial period ended in 2018  the kwaZulu-Natal provincial cabinet announced the rationalisation of Public entities.During 
the current financial period, there were developments on the  rationalisation of public entities and a decision to incorporate 
KwaZulu Natal Film Commision into Tourism KwaZulu Natal Authority was made.The incorporation of the two entities is not 
expected to  affect the going concern status of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal.

30.   Events after the reporting date

Adjusting events after the reporting date:
At the reporting date  the entity had disclosed a contingent liabilty for its cash surplus and had  submitted a request to the 
Provincial Treasury to approve this amount as a roll-over for  the next financial period’s budget (as per the National Treasury 
instruction note).Subsequent to financial statement submission,provincial treasury has granted the entity an approval to roll over 
the funds ,and therefore there entity no longer has a contingent liability .

Non-adjusting events after the reporting date:
As at the reporting date ,the entity and the KZN film commision ,were busy putting together an agreement of incorporation for 
that will be used for the incorporation of both these entities .The agreement was signed post the reporting date ,however there 
were  no financial implications attached to the agreement affecting the period under review.




